






Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through July

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 239,007.00 239,007.00 224,937.47 5,288.77 8,780.76 Teachers Salaries

1200 63,839.00 63,839.00 60,581.10 3,257.90 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 170,833.00 170,833.00 152,670.21 13,879.11 4,283.68 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 473,679.00 473,679.00 438,188.78 19,167.88 16,322.34 

2100 91,496.00 91,496.00 62,646.99 2,498.85 26,350.16 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 22,358.00 22,358.00 10,267.67 599.12 11,491.21 Classified Support Salaries

2300 101,356.00 101,356.00 92,970.16 8,416.20 30.36-Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 131,117.00 131,117.00 121,142.56 9,974.00 .44 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 13,638.00 13,638.00 140.00 13,498.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 359,965.00 359,965.00 287,027.38 21,628.17 51,309.45 

3101 59,287.00 59,287.00 55,124.07 2,411.31 1,751.62 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 1,650.00 1,650.00 564.80 1,085.20 STRS Classified Positions

3202 59,611.00 59,611.00 52,775.78 4,143.56 2,691.66 PERS Classified Positions

3302 21,633.00 21,633.00 17,214.94 1,309.23 3,108.83 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 6,234.00 6,234.00 5,771.15 253.26 209.59 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 5,157.00 5,157.00 4,096.47 307.66 752.87 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 94,367.00 94,367.00 91,699.65 2,479.75 187.60 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 59,571.00 59,571.00 57,014.73 5,198.31 2,642.04-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 329.00 329.00 219.07 9.59 100.34 SUI Certificated

3502 249.00 249.00 143.21 10.73 95.06 SUI Classified

3601 881.00 881.00 14,770.46 648.16 14,537.62-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 1,590.00 1,590.00 10,483.45 787.36 9,680.81-Workers' Compensation Classifi

3902 6,920.00 6,920.00 13,840.50 6,920.50-Golden Handshake-Class

Total for Object 3000 317,479.00 317,479.00 309,877.78 31,399.42 23,798.20-

4100 410.00 410.00 410.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 444.00 444.00 444.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 23,277.00 23,277.00 1,045.90 22,231.10 Materials and Supplies

4320 2,972.00 2,972.00 2,972.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 2,250.00 3,250.00 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 9,561.00 9,561.00 9,561.00 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 43,164.00 43,164.00 3,295.90 .00 39,868.10 

5100 42,000.00 42,000.00 43,884.20 1,884.20-Subagreements for Services

5200 23,280.00 23,280.00 4,610.00 250.00 18,420.00 Travel and Conference

5300 18,370.00 18,370.00 9,764.00 295.00- 8,901.00 Dues and Membership

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 1, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Aug  2 2016  8:26PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through July

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

5400 9,300.00 9,300.00 8,191.00 1,109.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 3,000.00 6,200.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 476.60 2,123.40 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 25,500.00 25,500.00 1,000.00 24,500.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 613.00 613.00 100.00 513.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 444,507.00 444,507.00 85,125.00 42,328.00 317,054.00 Contracted Services

5899 3,229.90 3,229.90-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,600.00 1,600.00 1,600.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 579,970.00 579,970.00 160,880.70 42,283.00 376,806.30 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 30,300.00 30,300.00 30,300.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 60,332.00 60,332.00 .00 .00 60,332.00 

7141 27,582.00 27,582.00 27,582.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 27,582.00 27,582.00 .00 .00 27,582.00 

548,421.99 1,862,171.00 1,862,171.00 1,199,270.54 114,478.47 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 13,360.00 13,360.00 13,360.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

93,360.00 93,360.00 93,360.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

641,781.99 1,955,531.00 1,955,531.00 1,199,270.54 114,478.47 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 1, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Aug  2 2016  8:26PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=85573&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


SCOE  
 Minutes 

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

July 12, 2016 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118 

6 pm 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 6:08 pm. 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT: Ms.  Patty Hall, President   

   Mr.  Mike Moore, Vice President  

    Mr.  Allen Wright, Clerk 

   Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Member 

 

 ABSENT:     Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Member     

 

 VACANT:     None 

     

C. FLAG SALUTE 

 

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

 MOORE/WRIGHT 

 4/0 

 

E.  INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Renewal of Contracts: Adaptive PE, Counselor (DVL) 

b. SARB Report (2015-16) (handout) 

c. SmartWatt will be auditing our needs and compiling a plan for review 
 

2. Business Report 

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/16 to 6/30/16 
 

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 

Mrs. Marlene Mongolo reported the Extended School well attended by SELPA 

students. 

 

4. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 
 

5. Public Comment – This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing board 

on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or not it is 

listed on the agenda.  Five minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty minutes to each 

subject matter.  (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3) 
 

a. Current location - Mrs. Megan Meschery gave a report on the Sierra Schools 

 Foundation. 
 

F CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held June 14, 2016 

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131393/9
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/145075/9


Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 12, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

2. Approval of bill warrants for month of June 2016 

3. Approval of Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for quarter ending 

June 30, 2016.  It is required per Education Code 35186 section (d) that a school district shall report 

summarized data on the nature and resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of 

schools and the governing board of the school district.  No complaints regarding textbooks and instructional 

materials, teacher vacancy or misassignment or conditions of facilities were filed with Sierra County Office of 

Education during the quarter ending June 30, 2016.  No complaints regarding textbooks and instructional materials, 

teacher vacancy or misassignment or conditions of facilities were filed with Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District during the 2015-2016 school year. 

 DRYDEN/WRIGHT 

 4/0 
 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. Unfinished Business and General Orders  

 

1617-01 Discussion:  Authorized Possession of Firearms on Campus (Grant) 

  Grant conveyed to the Board a conversation with the Superintendent of Cottonwood 

and how their policy was decided.  After lengthy discussion, the board recommended 

that the policy ‘Authorized Possession of Firearms on Campus’ not be brought back to 

approval at this time. 

 

2. New Business 

 

1617-02 Public Hearing to announce the adoption of the Declaration of Need for Fully 

Qualified Educators for the 2016-2017 school year opened at 6:45 pm and closed 

without comment.  

 

1617-03 Approval of Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators for the 2016-2017 

school year. A diligent search to recruit fully prepared teacher(s) was made and an insufficient 

number of certificated persons met the Sierra County Office of Education’s employment criteria for the 

position(s) 

 MOORE/ WRIGHT 

 4/0 
 

1617-04 Approval of the CBEST Waiver for Substitute Teachers (The Sierra County Office of 

Education has been unable to recruit enough day-to-day substitute teachers who have not had an 

opportunity to take and pass all sections of the California Basic Educational Skills Test (CBEST). The 

County anticipates employing no greater than five (5) day-to-day substitutes on variable term CBEST 

waivers for the 2016-2017 school year. 

 MOORE/ WRIGHT 

 4/0 

 

 BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS (President) 

 MOORE motioned to approved 1617-05 through and including 1617-10. WRIGHT 

seconded.  

 4/0 

 

1617-05 Approval of Board Policy 2121, Superintendent’s Contract, revision 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 12, 2016 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

1617-06 Approval of Board Policy 3541.2, Transportation for Students with Disabilities, 

revision 

 

1617-07 Approval to DELETE Admin Reg 3541.2, Transportation for Students with 

Disabilities 

 

1617-08 Approval of Board Bylaw 9222, Resignation, revision 

 

1617-09 Approval of Board Bylaw and Exhibit 9270, Conflict of Interest, revisions 

 

1617-10 Approval of Board Bylaw 9321, Closed Session Purposes and Agendas, revision 

 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

 1.   Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on August 9, 2016, at Downieville School, 

130 School Street, Downieville CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, 

at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm 

 

2.   Suggested Agenda Items   

a. _______________________ 

 
I. ADJOURN 

 

Adjourned at 6:48 pm. 

MOORE/DRYDEN 

4/0 

 

 

 

 

 __________________________   _______________________________  

 Allen Wright, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

        Secretary of the Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 07/01/2016 through 07/31/2016

Check 

Amount
Pay to the Order of

Check 

Number
Check Date Expensed AmountFund-Object Comment

00014425 07/08/2016 ROSE ASQUITH 01-9500 PER DIEM 62.64 

00014426 07/08/2016 CCSESA TREASURER              c/o SCHOOL SERVICES 

OF CA

01-5300 EMCN COALITION 105.00 

00014427 07/08/2016 ESCAPE TECHNOLOGY 01-5810 ESCAPE LICENSE/PROGRAMMING 41,908.00 

00014428 07/08/2016 CALIFORNIA FRIDAY NIGHT       LIVE PARTNERSHIP 01-5200 REGISTRATION 250.00 

00014429 07/08/2016 LENNIE GARCIA 01-9500 SNACKS FOR EXTENDED YEAR 59.53 

00014430 07/08/2016 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-9500 NURSE SERVICES 360.00 

00014431 07/08/2016 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-9500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 164.42 

00014432 07/08/2016 RONALD M. MARTIN              MARTIN SECURITY 

SYSTEMS

01-5810 ANNUAL ALARM FEE 420.00 

00014433 07/08/2016 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-9500 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

670.95 

00014434 07/08/2016 NEVADA COUNTY SELPA 01-9500 REGISTRATION 40.00 

00014435 07/08/2016 NORTHEASTERN JOINT POWERS     AUTHORITY 76-9571 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 5,937.50 

00014436 07/08/2016 PITNEY BOWES, INC. 01-5600 POSTAGE MACHINE 48.37 

01-5899 POSTAGE MACHINE 145.13 193.50 

00014437 07/08/2016 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF EDUCATION 01-9500 BANK SERVICE FEES 30.00 

00014438 07/08/2016 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 JULY 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,432.00 

76-9576 JULY 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 12,141.20 14,573.20 

00014439 07/08/2016 VOYAGER 01-9500 FUEL EXPENSE 152.62 

Total Number of Checks 15 64,927.36 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

01 County School Service Fund 14 46,848.66 

76 Payroll Clearing 2 18,078.70 

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 15 64,927.36 

.00 

64,927.36 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 1

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Aug  2 2016  8:22PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-002 

 
 

Fiscal Year End 2015-2016 Budget Revision 
 
 

WHEREAS, the 2015-2016 budget was adopted June 17, 2015, and 
 
WHEREAS, unanticipated income and liabilities providing changes to the budget 
expenditures necessitate intrafund transfers, 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary from time to time during a fiscal year to amend the Budget in 
accordance with Section 42600 of the California Education Code, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary at the close of any school year to transfer between funds to 
permit payment of obligations at close of year in accordance with Section 42601 of the 
California Education Code, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary from time to time during a fiscal year to use unbudgeted fund in 
accordance with Section 42602 and make appropriation of excess funds in accordance with 
Section 42610 of the California Education Code, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that an attached year end 2015-2016 Budget 
Revision is made in accordance with California Education Code 42600, 42601, 42602, and 
42610. 
 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Sierra County Office of Education 
Governing Board, August 9, 2016, by the following vote:  
 
 
AYES:    
NOES:   
ABSTENTIONS:  
ABSENT:   
VACANT:   
 
 
             
      Allen Wright, Clerk 

 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

July 2016 

 
BP/AR 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan 

(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to clarify the district's responsibility to annually review comprehensive school safety plans. Regulation 

updated to delete the requirement to include hate crime reporting procedures in the safety plan, as they are no longer 

required by law. List of optional plan components expanded to include (1) policy related to firearms possession on 

campus; (2) measures to minimize gang influence; (3) guidelines for the roles and responsibilities of mental health 

professionals, community intervention professionals, school counselors, school resource officers, and police officers 

on school campuses; (4) strategies for suicide prevention; (5) procedures to handle disruptions; and (6) concepts 

related to environmental safety. 

 

BP/AR/E 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools 

(BP/AR revised; E deleted) 

Policy and regulation updated to reflect the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) (P.L. 114-95), U.S. Department of 

Education (USDOE) guidance, and the California Department of Education (CDE) transition plan, which require 

schools identified for program improvement (PI) to continue to implement their school improvement plans during the 

2016-17 school year while a new system of school support and improvement activities for Title I schools is developed. 

Policy also deletes references to the federal measure of "adequate yearly progress" and the requirements to offer 

intradistrict transfers and supplemental educational services (SES) to eligible students, as these have been eliminated 

under ESSA. Material on the Parent Empowerment Act moved from AR to BP, and "Program Evaluation" section 

revised to reflect requirement to develop and post a report card with specified content. Regulation deletes sections on 

"Definitions," "Parental Notifications," "Student Transfers," and "Supplemental Educational Services," and adds 

section on "Alternative Supports" to reflect the CDE's transition plan which requires that district-defined supports be 

provided to eligible students. Exhibits (1) and (2) deleted since forms related to intradistrict transfers and SES are no 

longer needed.  

 

BP/AR 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts 

(BP revised; AR deleted) 

Policy updated to reflect the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95), USDOE guidance, and the CDE's transition 

plan, which, for the 2016-17 school year, require districts identified for program improvement (PI) to continue to 

implement their improvement plans and any recommendations of a district assistance and intervention team assigned 

to the district. Policy deletes outdated reference to the federal measure of "adequate yearly progress," deletes section 

on "Early Warning System" since districts are not being newly identified for PI, and consolidates and shortens 

material reflecting requirements for districts based on the number of years in PI. Regulation deleted as some 

requirements are no longer applicable and others are duplicated in the BP. 

 

BP/AR 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools 

(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (ABX2 9, 2016) which requires all districts, not just those receiving state 

Tobacco-Use Prevention Education funds, to prohibit tobacco use on school campuses. Policy also reflects new 

definitions of "smoking" and "tobacco" pursuant to NEW LAW (SBX2 5, 2016). Regulation reflects provision of 

ABX2 9 which requires signs prohibiting tobacco use to be displayed at all school entrances, and deletes option to 

designate a smoking area on campus. 

 

AR 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System 

(AR revised) 

Minor revision made in regulation to change name of the California Emergency Management Agency to the 

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services. 
 

BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals 

(BP/AR revised) 

Minor revisions made in policy and regulation to delete references to sharing free and reduced-price meal records for 

the purpose of determining the eligibility of students in Title I program improvement schools for school choice and 

supplemental educational services, as those requirements were eliminated in the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 

114-95), and instead authorize the use of those records to determine eligibility for alternative supports offered in 

accordance with the CDE's transition plan.  



 

BP 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to clarify that, although state and federal law prohibit discrimination in child nutrition programs for all 

protected categories, the CDE and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) only investigate complaints of 

discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability. Policy also reorganizes and expands the 

responsibilities of the district's civil rights coordinator to reflect CDE's guidebook as updated in November 2015, and 

updates the addresses where complaints may be submitted. Nondiscrimination statement that is required to be printed 

on program documents, pamphlets, brochures, and other materials updated to reflect the USDA's 2015 statement. 

 

BP 4112.2 - Certification 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to add requirement, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95), to notify 

parents/guardians of each student attending a school receiving Title I funds that they may request certain information 

regarding the qualifications of their child's teacher. 

 

E 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications 

(E revised) 

Minor revision made in exhibit to delete notification (last item of section II) regarding the opportunity to comment 

and participate when a school is identified for restructuring under Title I program improvement, repealed by the Every 

Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95). 

 

BP 4113 - Assignment 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to delete material re: assignment of teachers who meet the qualifications of "highly qualified" teachers, 

as those requirements were repealed by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) (P.L. 114-95). Policy also revised to 

reflect the continuing requirement to describe in the Title I local educational agency plan how the district will address 

any disparities that result in low-income or minority students being taught at higher rates by ineffective, 

inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. Details reflecting the state's Compliance Monitoring, Intervention and 

Sanctions program deleted as the CDE's ESSA transition plan indicates that districts will not be required to participate 

in that program in the 2016-17 school year. 

 

AR 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision 

(AR revised) 

Minor revision made in regulation to delete requirement that a teacher, in order to be evaluated on a five-year 

schedule, must meet the qualifications of a "highly qualified" teacher if applicable for the position, as the highly 

qualified teacher requirements were repealed by the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95). 

 

AR/E 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals 

(AR revised; E deleted) 

Regulation updated to delete material on the qualifications and duties of paraprofessionals working in a program 

supported by Title I funds, as those requirements were repealed by the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95). 

Regulation also consolidates options for the requirement that paraprofessionals demonstrate proficiency in reading, 

writing, and mathematics equivalent to or exceeding the proficiency required for high school seniors. Exhibit which 

provided a sample attestation of compliance with Title I paraprofessional requirements deleted. 

 



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0450

COMPREHENSIVE SAFETY PLAN

The Governing Board of Education recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure
campus where they are free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully committed to
maximizing school safety and to creating a positive learning environment that includes strategies for
violence prevention and high expectations for student conduct, responsible behavior, and respect for others.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)
(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cf. 5136 - Gangs)
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of a districtwide comprehensive safety plan
that is applicable to each school site.  (Education Code 32281)

Note:  The following two paragraphs apply to all districts. Education Code 32286 requires that the school site council review
and update the comprehensive safety plan by March 1 of each year. In districts with ADA of 2,500 or less that choose to
develop a districtwide plan in accordance with Option 2 above, the Superintendent or designee may conduct the
annual review.
Pursuant to Education Code 32288, the updated plan(s) must be submitted to the district for approval.  The Board may choose
to delegate to the Superintendent or designee the responsibility to review and approve the updated plans, but the Board
remains responsible for ensuring compliance with the law.

The comprehensive safety plan(s) shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 of each year. and forwarded
to the Board for approval. (Education Code 32286, 32288)

The Board shall review the comprehensive safety plan(s) in order to ensure compliance with state law,
Board policy, and administrative regulation and shall approve the plan(s) at a regularly scheduled meeting.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)



2

Note:  Education Code 32288 requires that districts notify the California Department of Education if a school has not complied
with the safety plan requirements.  In the event that the Superintendent of Public Instruction determines that there has been a
willful failure by a district to make any report required by Education Code 32280-32289, Education Code 32287 provides
that the district may be fined up to $2,000.

By October 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the California Department of
Education of any schools that have not complied with the requirements of Education Code 32281.
(Education Code 32288)

Tactical Response Plan

Note: The following section is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 32281, the Governing Board may, after consulting
with law enforcement officials, elect to have the district, rather than the school site council, develop those portions of the
comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily
injury.

Notwithstanding the process described above, any portion of a comprehensive safety plan that includes
tactical responses to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury at the school site,
including steps to be taken to safeguard students and staff, secure the
affected school premises, and apprehend the criminal perpetrator(s), shall be developed by district
administrators in accordance with Education Code 32281. In developing such strategies, district
administrators shall consult with law enforcement officials and with a representative of an employee
bargaining unit, if he/she chooses to participate.

When reviewing the tactical response plan, the Board may meet in closed session to confer with law
enforcement officials, provided that any vote to approve the tactical response plan is announced in open
session following the closed session. (Education Code 32281)

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

Public Access to Safety Plan(s)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that an updated file of all safety-related plans and materials is
readily available for inspection by the public.  (Education Code 32282)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

However, those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to criminal
incidents shall not be publicly disclosed.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination
32260-32262  Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
32270  School safety cadre
32280-32289  School safety plans
32290 Safety devices



3

35147  School site councils and advisory committees
35183  School dress code; uniforms
35291  Rules
35291.5 School-adopted discipline rules
35294.10-35294.15  School Safety and Violence Prevention Act
48900-48927  Suspension and expulsion
48950  Speech and other communication
49079  Notification to teacher; student act constituting grounds for suspension or expulsion
67381 Violent crime
PENAL CODE
422.55 Definition of hate crime
626.8  Disruptions
11164-11174.3  Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act
CALIFORNIA  CONSTITUTION
Article 1, Section 28(c) Right to Safe Schools
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
11987-11987.7 School Community Violence Prevention Program requirements
11992-11993  Definition, persistently dangerous schools
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
7111-7122  Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants
7912  Transfers from persistently dangerous schools
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against Sex Discrimination, July 2016
Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, October 2011
Community Schools: Partnerships Supporting Students, Families and Communities, Policy Brief, October 2010
Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2010
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief,
February 2014
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Safe Schools:  A Planning Guide for Action, 2002
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION PUBLICATIONS
Uniform Crime Reporting Handbook, 2004
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and Communities, January 2007
U.S. SECRET SERVICE AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Threat Assessment in Schools: A Guide to Managing Threatening Situations and to Creating Safe School Climates, 2004
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, Safe Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services: http://www.caloes.ca.gov
California Healthy Kids Survey: http://chks.wested.org
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention
Federal Bureau of Investigation:  http://www.fbi.gov
National Center for Crisis Management: http://www.schoolcrisisresponse.com
National School Safety Center:  http://www.schoolsafety.us
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov
U.S. Secret Service, National Threat Assessment Center: http://www.secretservice.gov/protection/ntac

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: April 12, 2012
revised:     August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
http://www.caloes.ca.gov
http://chks.wested.org
http://www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention
http://www.fbi.gov
http://www.schoolcrisisresponse.com
http://www.schoolsafety.us
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.secretservice.gov/protection/ntac


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0520.2

TITLE I PROGRAM IMPROVEMENT SCHOOLS

Note:  The following optional policy is for use by districts that receive federal Title I funds to improve the academic
achievement of students from economically disadvantaged families. As amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)
(P.L. 114-95), 20 USC 6311 provides for a new system of school support and improvement activities for Title I schools
beginning in the 2017-18 school year. Using a methodology to be established in the state plan, the California Department of
Education (CDE) will be required to identify and notify districts regarding schools that need "comprehensive support and
improvement," including schools in the lowest performing five percent of Title I schools, all high schools failing to graduate
one third or more of their students, and schools in which a subgroup of students, considered on its own, would lead to
identification among the lowest performing five percent of schools. The CDE will also be required to notify districts of
schools that have a consistently underperforming subgroup of students and therefore need "targeted support and
improvement." Until the new school improvement system is in place, schools that were previously identified for program
improvement (PI) for failure to make "adequate yearly progress" (AYP) for two or more consecutive years must continue to
implement their improvement plans and are subject to the requirements of this policy and the accompanying administrative
regulation.

For requirements pertaining to districts identified for PI, see BP/AR 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts.

The Governing Board is committed to enabling all district students to meet state academic achievement
standards and to narrowing the achievement gap among student groups. To that end, the district shall
provide support and assistance to increase student achievement in any school that receives federal Title I
funding and has been identified by the California Department of Education as a program improvement (PI)
school.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

Note: Although school improvement plans are still in effect for PI schools, districts are no longer required, because of the
repeal of 20 USC 6316 by P.L. 114-95, to (1) offer intradistrict transfers to all students in Title I schools identified for Year
1 PI or beyond or (2) provide supplemental educational services from an approved service provider to eligible students in
schools identified for Year 2 PI or beyond.

At their discretion, districts may choose to continue to offer intradistrict transfers to students in PI schools. If the Governing
Board elects to continue to offer the option to transfer, it may revise the paragraph below to reflect that option.  20 USC 6311,
as amended by P.L. 114-95, requires that any student who was previously granted a transfer out of a PI school be allowed to
remain at the school to which he/she transferred until the highest grade maintained at that school; see BP/AR 5116.1 -
Intradistrict Open Enrollment.

In addition, although the requirement to provide supplemental educational services was repealed, the CDE has elected to
instead require the provision of alternative supports, defined and administered by the district, to eligible students beginning
with the 2016-17 school year; see the accompanying administrative regulation. Also see BP 6179 - Supplemental Instruction
and the CDE's Every Student Succeeds Act 2016-17 School Year Transition Plan (April 2016).



2

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school improvement strategies developed for any PI school
are coordinated, aligned, and effectively implemented in accordance with administrative regulation and the
Board-approved school improvement plan.

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

Note: When a school enters Year 3 PI, the Board is required to select corrective action(s) to be applied to the school. The
Board also must select a restructuring option for any school that enters Year 4 PI. See the accompanying administrative
regulation for allowable options.

As necessary, the Board shall determine corrective actions for schools in Year 3 of PI and/or restructuring
options for schools in Year 4 of PI or beyond.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 53300-53303 (the Parent Empowerment Act) and 5 CCR 4800-4808, when a school enters
Year 4 PI, continues to fail to make AYP, has a state Academic Performance Index (API) of less than 800, and is not identified
by the CDE as a "persistently lowest achieving school," the parents/guardians of that school may petition the district to
implement one of four intervention models (i.e., turnaround model, restart model, school closure, or transformation model)
or an alternative governance arrangement, as these models are described in 5 CCR 4803-4807.  However, both the AYP and
API measures are currently suspended and the CDE's last identification of "persistently lowest achieving schools" was in
2015 based on 2013-14 data. Thus, districts should consult with legal counsel if they have questions about their eligibility to
receive a parent/guardian petition under the Parent Empowerment Act. The district must notify the Superintendent of Public
Instruction and the State Board of Education when it receives such a petition and when it takes action on the petition. This
option is limited to 75 schools statewide.

Whenever a school is identified for Year 4 PI but is not identified as a "persistently lowest achieving school"
pursuant to Education Code 53201, the parents/guardians of students attending that school may petition the
Board to implement an intervention for the purpose of improving academic achievement or student safety,
provided that the state limit on the number of such schools has not yet been reached. To be considered by
the Board, the petition shall contain all required content and signatures and specify one of four intervention
models (i.e., turnaround model, restart model, school closure, or transformation model) or an alternative
governance arrangement, as described in 5 CCR 4803-4807. The district shall implement the option
requested by the parents/guardians unless, at a regularly scheduled public hearing, the Board makes a
finding in writing stating the reason it cannot implement the recommended option and instead designates
one of the other options to be implemented.  (Education Code 53300-53303; 5 CCR 4800-4808)

Program Evaluation

Note: Pursuant to 20 USC 6311, any district receiving Title I, Part A funds must prepare and disseminate an annual report
card which includes specified information. As amended by P.L. 114-95, 20 USC 6311
expands the required content of the report card but no longer requires that it include annual measurable objectives, AYP, or
teacher quality information.
Rather than issuing a district-level report card, districts are allowed by 20 USC 6311 to incorporate the information into the
school accountability report card required by Education Code 35256; see BP 0510 - School Accountability Report Card.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop an annual report card that includes the information specified
in 20 USC 6311 for each district school and for the district as a whole. The required information may be
incorporated into each school's school accountability report card. (20 USC 6311)

(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)



3

Note: 20 USC 6311 requires that the report card be accessible to the public by posting it on the district's web site or, if the
district does not have its own web site, then in a manner determined by the district. A district that does not have a web site
should revise the following paragraph to reflect the method it will use to disseminate the report card.

The report card shall be concise, presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent
practicable, in a language that parents/guardians can understand. It shall be made accessible to the public
on the district's web site.  (20 USC 6311)

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

As necessary based on the results of this evaluation, the Board may require the Superintendent or designee
to review and revise any of the school's reform plans, including the school's Single Plan for Student
Achievement, allocate additional resources toward the implementation of the plan, and/or require more
frequent monitoring of the school's progress in order to raise student achievement.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35256 School accountability report card
53200-53203  Persistently lowest achieving schools
53300-53303  Parent Empowerment Act
64000  Categorical programs included in consolidated application
64001  Single school plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
11992-11994  Persistently dangerous schools, definition
4800-4808  Parent Empowerment petitions
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
6301  Title I program purpose
6311 State plan; state and local educational agency report cards
6312  Local educational agency plan
6313  Eligibility of schools and school attendance areas; funding allocation
7912  Persistently dangerous schools
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.1-99.67  Family Educational Rights and Privacy
200.49-200.51  State responsibilities
200.52-200.53  District improvement

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Every Student Succeeds Act 2016-17 School Year Transition Plan, April 2016
FEDERAL REGISTER
Final Rule and Supplementary Information, October 29, 2008. Vol. 73, No. 210, pages 64436-64513
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Transitioning to the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA): Frequently Asked Questions, rev. May 4, 2016
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, Program Improvement: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ti/programimprov.asp
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted:     August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ti/programimprov.asp
http://www.ed.gov


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans AR 0520.2

TITLE I PROGRAM IMPROVEMENT SCHOOLS

Note:  The following administrative regulation reflects the requirements of federal and state law for Title I schools
that were identified by the California Department of Education (CDE) for program improvement (PI) for failing
to make "adequate yearly progress" for two or more consecutive school years. Until a new system of school support
and improvement is implemented beginning in the 2017-18 school year pursuant to 20 USC 6311, as amended by
the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) (P.L. 114-95), PI schools are required to implement the same interventions
in the 2016-17 school year as were required in the 2015-16 school year, with specified exceptions. Districts are no
longer required to offer intradistrict transfers to students in schools in Year 1 PI and beyond, to provide
supplemental educational services by an approved provider in schools in Year 2 PI and beyond, or to issue certain
notifications. See the U.S. Department of Education's Transitioning to the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA):
Frequently Asked Questions (May 2016) and the CDE's Every Student Succeeds Act 2016-17 School Year
Transition Plan (April 2016).

Year 1 Program Improvement

For any district school in its first year of program improvement (PI), the Superintendent or
designee shall implement a school improvement plan that was approved by the Governing Board.

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the school receives technical assistance from the
district, California Department of Education (CDE), an institution of higher education, a private
organization, an educational service agency, or another entity with experience in helping schools
improve academic achievement, including assistance in:

1. Analyzing data from state assessments and other examples of student work to identify and
address problems in instruction and/or problems in implementing Title I requirements
pertaining to parent involvement, professional development, or school and district
responsibilities identified in the school plan

2. Identifying and implementing professional development, instructional strategies, and
methods of instruction that are derived from scientifically based research and that have
proven effective in addressing the specific instructional issues that caused the school to be
identified for PI

3. Analyzing and revising the school's budget so that the school's resources are more
effectively allocated to the activities most likely to increase student achievement and
remove the school from PI status

(cf. 3100 - Budget)



2

Year 2 Program Improvement

For any district school in its second year of PI, the Superintendent or designee shall continue to
implement the school improvement plan and to provide for technical assistance in accordance with
the section "Year 1 Program Improvement" above.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall arrange for the provision of alternative supports
to eligible students from low-income families, as described below in the section "Alternative
Supports."

Year 3 Program Improvement:  Corrective Action

After the second full school year after identification for PI, the Superintendent or designee shall
continue to implement all elements of Year 1 and Year 2 PI specified above, as well as the
corrective action(s) determined by the Board, which may include:

1. Replacing school staff relevant to the failure

(cf. 4113 - Assignment)
(cf. 4114 - Transfers)
(cf. 4314 - Transfers)

2. Implementing a new curriculum and related professional development

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)

3. Significantly decreasing management authority at the school level

4. Appointing an outside expert to advise the school

5. Extending the school year or school day for the school

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar)
(cf. 6112 - School Day)

6. Restructuring the internal organization of the school

Year 4 Program Improvement and Beyond:  Restructuring

For any school in Year 4 of PI or beyond, the Superintendent or designee shall continue to
implement all elements of Year 1 and Year 2 PI specified above, as well as one of the following
options for alternative governance and restructuring, as determined by the Board:

1. Reopening the school as a charter school



3

2. Replacing all or most of the school staff relevant to the failure

3. Entering into a contract with an entity with a demonstrated record of effectiveness to
operate the school

4. Turning the operation of the school over to the CDE

5. Instituting any other major restructuring of the school's governance arrangements that
makes fundamental reforms

Alternative Supports

Note: The following section should be revised to reflect district practice. P.L. 114-95 repealed 20 USC 6316 which
had required Title I schools identified for Year 2 PI, corrective action, or restructuring to provide eligible students
with supplemental educational services from an approved service provider.  In accordance with the CDE's Every
Student Succeeds Act 2016-17 School Year Transition Plan (April 2016), the CDE has elected to instead require
the provision of alternative supports, defined and administered by the district, to eligible students beginning with
the 2016-17 school year. The following section is consistent with the CDE's transition plan. Also see BP 6179 -
Supplemental Instruction.

In any school identified for Year 2 PI or beyond, eligible students from low-income families shall
be offered district-selected alternative supports designed to improve their academic achievement.
Alternative supports may include, but are not limited to, any of the following:

1. Academic support offered during school hours, before school, after school, during
intercession, and/or during summer learning programs

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes)
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs)
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

2. Small group instruction and/or pull-out interventions offered during the regular school day

3. Interventions offered during After School Education and Safety or 21st Century
Community Learning Center programs

4. High quality academic tutoring

5. Provision of supplemental materials that support alternative support services

6. Provision of a crisis, intervention, and/or academic counselor to meet with eligible students

7. Services and programs that remove barriers to promote academic achievement of eligible
students



4

The types of alternative supports and the criteria used to identify eligible students may be included
in the district's local control and accountability plan and shall be consistent and aligned with local
priorities.

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

If the district contracts with outside entities or community partners to provide alternative supports
to eligible students, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that no electronic device or other
items of value are given, retained, or used as an incentive or achievement award and that funds are
expended only on direct services to eligible students.

The district shall set aside a reasonable amount of Title I, Part A funds for alternative supports.
Whenever the district does not have sufficient funds to serve all eligible students, it may give
priority to the lowest achieving PI schools or the lowest achieving eligible students attending a PI
school. The Superintendent or designee may identify the lowest achieving eligible students based
on assessment scores, grades, teacher evaluations, or another locally defined measure.

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted:     August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3513.3

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS

Note: Health and Safety Code 104420 mandates districts receiving Tobacco-Use Prevention Education (TUPE) funds to adopt a tobacco-
free schools policy that prohibits the use of tobacco and nicotine products anytime, anywhere in district-owned or leased buildings, on
school or district property, and in district vehicles.  The same prohibition is applicable to districts that do not receive TUPE funds pursuant
to Health and Safety Code 104559, as added by ABX2 9 (Ch. 5, Statutes of 2016).

Districts receiving TUPE funds must certify compliance with this requirement by submitting a California Department of Education (CDE)
certification form and supporting documentation to the county office of education's TUPE coordinator by July 1 in order to apply for TUPE
funding for that fiscal year. The certification process also requires submission of the district's written policy and enforcement procedures;
see the accompanying administrative regulation for enforcement procedures.

The Board of EducationThe Governing Board recognizes that smoking and other uses of tobacco and
nicotine products constitute a serious public health hazard and are inconsistent with district goals to provide
a healthy environment for students and staff.

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)
(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs)
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)
(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

The Board prohibits smoking and/or the use of tobacco products at any time in district-owned or leased
buildings, on district property, and in district vehicles.  (Health and Safety Code 104420; Labor Code
6404.5; 20 USC 6083, 104559)

This prohibition applies These prohibitions apply to all employees, students, and visitors at any school-
sponsored instructional program, activity, or athletic event held on or off district property.  Any written
joint use agreement governing community use of district facilities or grounds shall include notice of the
district's tobacco-free schools policy and consequences for violations of the policy.

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)
(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)

Smoking means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying of any lighted or heated cigar, cigarette, pipe,
tobacco, or plant product intended for inhalation, whether natural or synthetic,
in any manner or form, and includes the use of an electronic smoking device that creates aerosol or vapor
or of any oral smoking device for the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking.  (Business and
Professions Code 22950.5; Education Code 48901)

Tobacco products include:  (Business and Professions Code 22950.5; Education Code 48901)

1. Any product containing, made for , or derived from tobacco or nicotine that is intended for human
consumption, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, snorted, sniffed, or



ingested by any other means, including, but not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, little cigars, chewing
tobacco, pipe tobacco, or snuff

2. An electronic device that delivers nicotine or other vaporized liquids to the person inhaling from the
device, including, but not limited to, an electronic cigarette, cigar, pipe, or hookah

3. Any component, part, or accessory of a tobacco product, whether or not sold separately

This policy does not prohibit the use or possession of prescription nicotine products and other cessation
aids that have been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug
Administration, such as nicotine patch or gum.

Smoking or use of any tobacco-related products and/product or disposal of any tobacco-related waste is
prohibited within 25 feet of any playground, except on a public sidewalk located within 25 feet of the
playground.  In addition, any form of intimidation, threat, or retaliation against a person for attempting to
enforce this policy is prohibited. (Health and Safety Code 104495)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
48900  Grounds for suspension/expulsion
48901  Prohibition against tobacco use by students
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE
22950.5  Stop Tobacco Access to Kids Enforcement Act; definitions
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
39002  Control of air pollution from nonvehicular sources
104350-104495 Tobacco use prevention, especially:
104495  Prohibition of smoking and tobacco waste on playgrounds
104559 Tobacco use prohibition
119405  Unlawful to sell or furnish electronic cigarettes to minors
LABOR CODE
3300  Employer, definition
6304  Safe and healthful workplace
6404.5  Occupational safety and health; use of tobacco products
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
6083  Nonsmoking policy for children's services
7111-7122  Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21
1140.1-1140.34  Unlawful sale of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco to minors
PERBPUBLIC EMPLOYMENT AND RELATIONS BOARD RULINGS
Eureka Teachers Assn. v. Eureka City School District (1992) PERB Order #955 (16 PERC 23168)
CSEA #506 and Associated Teachers of Metropolitan Riverside v. Riverside Unified School District (1989) PERB Order #750 (13
PERC 20147)

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California Department of Education, Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Prevention:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at
California Department of Education, Tobacco-Free School District Certification:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at/tobaccofreecert.asp
California Department of Public Health, Tobacco Control:  http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco
Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board:  http://www.dir.ca.gov/OSHSB/oshsb.html
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:  http://www.epa.gov

Policy SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted:  April 10, 2007 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
revised:  May 10, 2011 Sierraville, California
revised:  January 14, 2014 Loyalton, California
revised:  June 18, 2014
revised:  August 9, 2016

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at/tobaccofreecert.asp
http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco
http://www.dir.ca.gov/OSHSB/oshsb.html
http://www.epa.gov


Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3541.1

TRANSPORTATION FOR SCHOOL-RELATED TRIPS

The district may provide transportation for students, employees, and other individuals for field trips and
other school-related trips approved according to Board policy and administrative regulation.

The Superintendent or designee shall determine the most appropriate and cost-effective mode of
transportation for each approved trip. He/she may authorize the use of district vehicles, contract to provide
transportation, or arrange transportation by the use of other vehicles.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district or contractor has sufficient liability insurance
for transportation on school-related trips.

When district transportation is provided, students may be released from using district transportation only
with the advance written permission of their parents/guardians.

School-related organizations requesting transportation shall be fully responsible for the costs of their trips
unless funding has been approved by the Superintendent.

Transportation by Private Vehicle

The Superintendent or designee may authorize the transportation of students by private vehicle when the
vehicle is driven by an adult who:  1) is age 25 or older, 2) is the owner of the vehicle, 3) possesses a valid
California driver's license or, if he/she is a nonresident on active military duty in California, possesses a
valid license from his/her state of residence, 4) shall have a good driving record with no more than two (2)
points within the past five (5) years; reported violations AND no convictions of reckless driving or driving
under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol within the past seven (7) years and, 5) possesses liability
insurance of at least $300,000 or more as required by law.  Any person providing transportation to district
students in a private vehicle shall register with the district for such purposes.

Drivers may receive safety and emergency instructions which shall be kept in their vehicle.

All student passengers shall submit permission slips signed by their parents/guardians. Teachers shall
ensure that each driver has a copy of the permission slip for each student riding in his/her vehicle.

The number of passengers, including the driver, shall not exceed the capacity for which the vehicle was
designed. No recreational vehicles, motor homes or open vehicles are to be used, regardless of numbers of
passengers. Trucks may not transport more persons than can safely sit in the passenger compartment. The
driver shall ensure that the manufacturer's recommendations for his/her vehicle are followed regarding the
seating of children in seats equipped with airbags.

The driver or any other person shall not smoke or have in his/her immediate possession a lighted pipe, cigar,
or cigarette containing tobacco or any other plant when there is a minor in the motor vehicle, whether the
motor vehicle is in motion or at rest.  (Health and Safety Code 118948)



Passenger Restraint Systems

All drivers shall wear safety belts and shall ensure that all passengers are properly secured in seat belts or
child passenger restraint systems in accordance with law.  (Vehicle Code 27315, 27360, 27360.5, 27363)

A child who is under age 8 years or younger or children who shall be properly secured inare less than 4 feet
9 inches tall shall be properly secured in a rear seat in an appropriate child passenger restraint system
meeting federal safety standards, except under any of the following circumstances:  (Vehicle Code 27360,
27363)

1. The child is 8 years old or older and four feet nine inches or taller, in which case a safety belt may
be used.

2. Use of a child passenger restraint system would be impractical by reason of physical unfitness,
medical condition, or size and an appropriate special needs child passenger restraint system is not
available.

3. There is no rear seat, the rear seats are side-facing jump seats or rear-facing seats, the child passenger
restraint system cannot be installed properly in the rear seat, all rear seats are already occupied by
children under age 8 years, or medical reasons necessitate that the child not ride in the rear seat.

4. The child is otherwise exempted by law.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35330  Excursions and field trips; 35332  Transportation by air
39830  School bus; 39830.1  School pupil activity bus
39860  Transportation to special activities by district; 44808  Liability when students not on school property
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
118947-118949  Prohibition against smoking in motor vehicle with minor
PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE
5384.2  District not liable for charter-party carrier
VEHICLE CODE
545 School bus, definition; 12814.6 Limitations of provisional driver's license
27315  Mandatory use of seat belts in private passenger vehicles
27360-27360.5  Child passenger restraint systems; 27363  Child passenger restraint systems, exemptions

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California Department of Motor Vehicles: http://www.dmv.ca.gov
California Highway Patrol: http://www.chp.ca.gov
California Office of Traffic Safety:  http://www.ots.ca.gov
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration: http://www.nhtsa.dot.gov

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
Policy SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted:    April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
Revised:    June 19, 2008
Revised:    March 13, 2012
Revised:    August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California

http://www.dmv.ca.gov
http://www.chp.ca.gov
http://www.ots.ca.gov
http://www.nhtsa.dot.gov


Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Exhibit E (1) 3541.1
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Transportation For School-Related Trips

SCHOOL DRIVER REGISTRATION FORM

Driver (circle one):   Employee     Parent/Guardian     Volunteer

Name: Date of Birth:

Address:
City State Zip

Telephone No. :(    ) Cell Phone No.:

Driver's License No.: Expiration Date:

VEHICLE INFORMATION

Name of Owner: Year of Vehicle:

Address:
City State Zip

Make: Model: License Plate No.:

Registration Expiration: Seating Capacity:

INSURANCE INFORMATION
(submit a copy of personal vehicle insurance declaration page to school district)

Insurance Company: Policy No.:

Telephone No.: Expiration Date:

Liability Limits of Policy:

DRIVER STATEMENT

I certify that the information given on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I
understand that as a volunteer driver, I am a registered owner of the vehicle, I must possess a valid
driver’s license, and have the proper current license and vehicle registration, and carry at least
$300,000 minimum liability insurance in effect on any vehicle used to transport students. I certify
that I have a good driving record with no more than two (2) points within the past five (5) years
reported violations and have not been convicted of reckless driving or driving under the influence
of drugs and/or alcohol within the past five seven (7) years. I understand that if an accident
occurs, my insurance coverage shall bear primary responsibility for any losses or claims for
damages.



I certify that the vehicle being driven is in good mechanical and operational condition and I have
no knowledge of mechanical defects which could impose a danger while transporting students. I
certify that I will ensure that all children will be restrained using the appropriate passenger
restraint systems.

I HEREBY WAIVE ALL CLAIMS AGAINST THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JUSD AND SIERRA
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, AND ITS BOARD, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS FOR
INJURY, ACCIDENT, ILLNESS, OR DEATH OCCURRING DURING OR BY REASON OF
THE FIELD TRIP OR EXCURSION. (Education Code 35330)

Name (Print):

Name (Signature):

Date: ___________________

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit version: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
Revised: March 13, 2012;
Revised: June 17, 2013,
Revised: August 9, 2016

Loyalton, California



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Exhibit E (2) 3541.1
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Transportation For School-Related Trips

DRIVER INSTRUCTIONS

When using your vehicle to transport students on field trips or other school activity trips, please:

1. Be sure that you have registered with the school district office for such purposes and have
a valid driver's license and current liability insurance at or above $300,000 for each
occurrence. (refer to School Driver Registration form)

2. Each driver shall have a copy of the permission slip for each student riding in his/her
vehicle.

3. Check the safety of your vehicle: tires, brakes, lights, horn, suspension, etc.

4. Carry only the number of passengers for which your vehicle was designed. No
recreational vehicles, motor homes or open vehicles are to be used regardless of number
of passengers. Trucks may not transport more persons than can safely sit in the passenger
compartment.

5. Require each passenger to use an appropriate passenger restraint system. A child who is
under age 8 years or younger or children who are less than 4 feet 9 inches tall shall be
properly secured in a rear seat in an appropriate child passenger restraint system, or as
according to current law.

In case of emergency, keep all the children together and call 911 and the district office.

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierra County Office of Education

P O Box 955* 109 Beckwith Road Room #3
Loyalton, CA 96118

(530) 993-1660 * Fax (530) 993-0828

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit version: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
Revised: March 13, 2012;
Revised: June 17, 2013,
Revised: August 9, 2016

Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3555

NUTRITION PROGRAM COMPLIANCE

Note:  The following policy is mandated for any district whose child nutrition programs (i.e., National School Lunch
Program, School Breakfast Program, Special Milk Program, and/or other child nutrition program) receive state or federal
funding. 5 CCR 4621 mandates that districts adopt uniform complaint procedures for the investigation and resolution of
specified types of complaints, and 5 CCR 4610 makes those procedures applicable to allegations of unlawful discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, bullying, or violation of state or federal laws governing educational programs, including child
nutrition programs. See BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

Various state and federal laws prohibit discrimination in district programs and activities on the basis of actual or perceived
race, color, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group, age, religion, marital or parental status, disability, sex, sexual orientation,
gender, gender identity or expression, or genetic information, or association with a person or group with one or more of these
actual or perceived characteristics. See BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities.  7 CFR 210.23,
215.7, and 220.7 specify that children must not be denied benefits or discriminated against in child nutrition programs on the
basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, and complaints alleging discrimination on any of these bases may
be investigated by the California Department of Education (CDE) or the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition
Service (FNS).

The CDE's Civil Rights and Complaint Procedures for the U.S. Department of Agriculture Child Nutrition Programs and
FNS Instruction 113-1, Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement - Nutrition Programs and Activities, provide guidance to
districts on how best to comply with federal law.

The Board of EducationThe Governing Board recognizes the district's responsibility to comply with state
and federal nondiscrimination laws as they apply to the district's nutrition programs. The district shall not
deny any individual the benefits or service of any nutrition program or discriminate against him/her because
of his/her race, color, national origin, gender, sex, sexual orientation, disability, oron any other basis
prohibited by law, in its implementation of such a program.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program)
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

Coordinator

Note: According to the CDE's Civil Rights and Complaint Procedures for the Child Nutrition Programs, districts are required
to appoint a civil rights coordinator to be responsible for ensuring district compliance with law governing child nutrition
programs. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.

The Board designates the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures
as coordinator of the district's efforts civil rights coordinator to complyensure compliance with the laws
governing its nutrition programs and to investigate any related complaints. Any complaint concerning the
district's nutrition programs shall be investigated using the process identified in the section entitled
"Procedures" in the district's AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.



2

Note: Items #1-10 below reflect the duties of the coordinator as provided in CDE's Civil Rights and Complaint Procedures
for the Child Nutrition Programs.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

The responsibilities of the compliance officer/coordinator include, but are not limited to:

1. Providing the name of the civil rights coordinator, Section 504 coordinator, and Title IX coordinator,
if different from the civil rights coordinator, to the California Department of Education and other
interested parties

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

coordinator shall provide2. Annually providing mandatory civil rights training on the laws, regulations,to
all frontline staff who interact with program applicants or participants and to those who supervise
frontline staff

Note: FNS Instruction 113-1 lists required components of training that must be provided to nutrition program staff, as
provided below.

The subject matter of such training shall include, but not be limited to, collection and use of data,
effective public notification systems, complaint procedures, compliance review techniques,
resolution of noncompliance, requirements for reasonable accommodation of persons with
disabilities, requirements for language assistance, conflict resolution, and customer service.

3. and directives related to the district's nutrition programs to district employees involved in
administering them.  The coordinator also shall develop Establishing admission and enrollment
procedures and systems that do not restrict the participation of individuals in the district's nutrition
programs, based on their enrollment of students on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin, or
disability, and that prevent district employees including preventing staff from incorrectly denying
the applications for participation submitted by and ensuring that such individuals.persons have equal
access to all programs

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
The coordinator shall develop and maintain
4. Sending a system for collecting racial and ethnic data of participants in the district'spublic release

announcing the availability of the child nutrition programs and shall, at least annually, report to the
Board on whether the district's nutrition /or changes in the programs are effectively reachingto
public media and to community and grassroots organizations that interact directly with eligible
individualsor potentially eligible participants

5. Communicating the program's nondiscrimination policy and whetherapplicable complaint
procedures, as provided in the section "Notifications" below

6. Providing appropriate translation services when a significant number of persons in the surrounding
population have limited English proficiency

7. Ensuring that every part of a facility is accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities and that
participants with disabilities are not excluded from the benefits or services due to inaccessibility of



3

facilities

8. Ensuring that special meals are made available to participants with disabilities who have a medical
statement on file documenting that their disability restricts their diet

(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)

9. Implementing procedures to process and resolve civil rights (discrimination) complaints and
program-related complaints, including maintaining a complaint log and working with the
appropriate person to resolve any complaint

Note: Districts receiving federal financial assistance are required to request racial/ethnic data of all program applicants and
participants for purposes of determining whether the program reaches potential eligible persons, identifying areas where
additional outreach may beis needed, selecting locations for compliance reviews, and completing required reports.
According to FNS Instruction 113-1, using the applicant's self-identification or self-reporting is the preferred method of
obtaining racial and ethnic data.

10. Developing a method, which preferably uses self-identification or self-reporting, to collect racial
and ethnic data for potentially eligible populations, applicants, and participants

(cf. 5022 - Students and Family Privacy Rights)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

When a significant number of participants or potential participants in the district's nutrition programs are
only non-English speakers, the coordinator shall make an appropriate language translation available.

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)
(cf. 6174 - English Language Learners)

The coordinator also shall ensure that the district's nutrition programs accommodate the special dietary
needs of any individual with a disability who has on file a medical statement that restricts his/her diet
because of his/her disability.

Notifications

The coordinator shall ensure that the The U.S. Department of Agriculture's (USDA) "And Justice for All"
or othercivil rights poster or a substitute poster approved by the USDA's Food and Nutrition Programs Civil
Rights posters areService shall be displayed in areas visible to the district's nutrition program participants,
such as food service areas and school offices.

Note:  FNS Instruction 113-1 requires districts to notify nutrition program applicants, participants, and
employeespotentially eligible persons of program requirementsavailability, rights, and responsibilities and to advise
them at each service delivery site (e.g., the school) regarding the proceduresprocedure for filing a complaint,. Such notice
may be distributed through student and parent/guardian handbooks or other method of parental notifications.

Annually, the coordinator shall notify all students, parents/guardiansThe coordinator shall notify the
district's usual means of notificationpublic, all program applicants, participants, and potentially eligible
persons of their program rights and responsibilities and steps necessary for participation. Applicants,



4

participants, and the public also shall be advised of their right to file a complaint, how to file a complaint,
the complaint procedures, and that a complaint may be file anonymously or by a third party.

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Note: As part of its instructions to all recipients of federal funds, FNS requires that all forms of communication available to
the public regarding program availability also contain information about that recipient's status as an equal opportunity
provider and the address of the agency with responsibility to handle complaints made against the recipient. FNS provides
specific language for the notification and prohibits its modification in any way. The FNS requires that all documents,
pamphlets, brochures, and other materials be updated to include the 2015 statement when supplies are exhausted, but no later
than September 30, 2016.

In addition, the coordinatorall forms of communication available to the public regarding program
availability shall ensure that every informational release, publication, or poster concerning the district's
nutrition programs and/or activities includescontain, in a prominent location, the following statement:

"In accordance with federal Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, this
institution is(USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and
employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, religion, political beliefs,
or disability.  In addition, California law prohibits discrimination on any basis identified in
Government Code 12940, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program.

To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400
Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice)activity
conducted or (202) 720-6382 (TTY).  USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer."funded
by USDA.

However, if the document is no more than one page and there is no room to Persons with disabilities
who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g., Braille, large print,
audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the Agency (State or local) where they
applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech disabilities may
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a the full program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, (AD-3027) found online at: http://
www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed
to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of
the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html


5

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

This institution is an equal opportunity provider."

Forms of communication requiring this nondiscrimination statement, the district may instead use the
statement include, but are not limited to, web sites, public information releases, publications, and posters,
but exclude menus. The nondiscrimination statement need not be included on every page of program
information on the district's or school's web site, but the statement or a link to the statement shall be included
on the home page of the program information.

A short version of the nondiscrimination statement, stating "This institution is an equal opportunity
provider"," may be used on pamphlets, brochures, and flyers in the same print size as the rest of the text.

Complaints

Any complaint concerning the district's nutrition programs shall be investigated using the process identified
in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

When a complaint alleging discrimination of the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability
is unresolved at the district level, the coordinator shall notify the complainant of the option to contact and/or
forward his/her complaint to one of the following agencies:

1. Child Nutrition Program Civil Rights and Program Complaint Coordinator, California Department
of Education, Nutrition Services Division, 1430 N Street, Room 15004503, Sacramento, CA 95814-
2342 or call (916-445-0850) 323-8531 or (800-) 952-5609

2.OfficeU.S. Department of Civil Rights, USDA, Western Region, 90 Seventh Street, Suite 10-100, San
Francisco, CA 94103 or call 415-705-1336 or fax 415-705-1364 or email Joe.Torres@fns.usda.gov

Agriculture
3. USDA, Director, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue,

SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call , (866) 632-9992, (800-795-3272 or ) 877-8339 (Federal
Relay Service - English), (800) 845-6136 (Federal Relay Service - Spanish), fax (202-720-6382
(TYY)) 690-7442, or email program.intake.usda.gov.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination
48985  Notices to parents in language other than English
49060-49079  Student records
49490-49590  Child nutrition programs
PENAL CODE
422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
3080  Application of section
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act
1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

mailto:intake@usda.gov
mailto:Torres@fns.usda.gov


6

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964
2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2000h-2000h-6  Title IX
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7
210.23  National School Lunch Program, district responsibilities
215.7  Special Milk Program, requirements for participation
215.14  Special Milk Program, nondiscrimination
220.7  School Breakfast Program, requirements for participation
225.3  Summer Food Service Program, administration
225.7  Summer Food Service Program, program monitoring
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act
36.303  Auxiliary aids and services
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
100.1-100.13  Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI
104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
106.1-106.61  Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially:
106.9  Dissemination of policy

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Civil Rights and Complaint Procedures for the U.S. Department of Agriculture Child Nutrition Programs, rev. November 2015
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE PUBLICATIONS
Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement - Nutrition Programs and Activities, FNS Instruction 113-1, November 2005
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Notice of Non-Discrimination, August 2010
WEB SITES
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services: http://www.fns.usda.gov
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ascr.usda.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/ocr

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: July 12, 2011 Sierraville, California
revised:   August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.ascr.usda.gov
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Certificated Personnel BP 4112.2

CERTIFICATION

Note: Under the authority granted by Education Code 44252, the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC)
establishes standards and procedures for the issuance and renewal of multiple subject, single subject, education
specialist, and other credentials, certificates, and permits and approves applications. Pursuant to Education Code
44251, a preliminary credential is generally valid for five years, during which time the employee must complete
the requirements for the clear credential in order to continue to serve in a certificated position. The clear credential
must be renewed every five years, but renewal does not require completion of additional coursework or service
requirements.

Assignment to certain positions within the district may require additional qualifications.  For example, see AR
4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Language Learners, AR 4112.23 - Special Education Staff, and BP/AR 4113 -
Assignment.

The Governing Board recognizes that the district's ability to provide a high-quality educational
program is dependent upon the employment of certificated staff who are adequately prepared and
have demonstrated proficiency in basic skills and in the subject matter to be taught. The
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that persons employed to fill positions requiring
certification qualifications possess the appropriate credential, permit, or other certification
document from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) and fulfill any additional state,
federal, or district requirements for the position.

(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection)
(cf. 4112.21 - Interns)
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Language Learners)
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff)(cf. 4112.24 - Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left
Behind Act)4112.5/4212

(cf. 4112.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)
(cf. 4113 - Assignment)
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

The Superintendent or designee may shall provide assistance and support to teachers holding
preliminary credentials to help enable them to meet the qualifications required for the clear
credential.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance)



2

Priorities for Hiring Based on Unavailability of Credentialed Teacher

Note: When the district is unable to hire a "fully prepared" teacher who has completed a teacher preparation
program (i.e., a teacher who holds a clear or preliminary teaching credential), Education Code 44225.7 permits the
district to hire a teacher without those credentials. Education Code 44225.7 establishes a hierarchy for such hires,
as provided in items #1-3 below.

The Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable efforts to recruit a fully prepared teacher
for each assignment. Whenever a teacher with a clear or preliminary credential is not
available, the Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable efforts to recruit an individual for
the assignment in the following order:  (Education Code 44225.7)

1. A candidate who is qualified to participate in and enrolls in an approved intern program in
the region of the district and possesses an intern credential

2. A candidate who is scheduled to complete preliminary credential requirements within six
months and who holds a provisional internship permit (PIP) or short-term staff permit
issued by the CTC

The Board shall approve, as an action item at a public Board meeting, a notice of its intent
to employ a PIP applicant for a specific position.  (5 CCR 80021.1)

3.AsNote:  Pursuant to Education Code 44225.7, when the district is unable to recruit a credentialed teacher or a
teacher who meets the qualifications specified in items #1-2 above, it may request that the CTC issue a "variable
term" credential waiver (Education Code 44225; 5 CCR 80120-80125) or a long-term emergency permit
(Education Code 44300; 5 CCR 80023-80026.6), as provided in item #3 below.

The STSP and PIP have replaced multiple subject, single subject, and education specialist emergency permits, but
the CTC continues to issue the emergency resource specialist permit (5 CCR 80024.3.1), emergency teacher
librarian services permit (5 CCR 80024.6), emergency crosscultural, language and academic development permit
(5 CCR 80024.8), and emergency bilingual authorization permit (5 CCR 80024.7).

3. An individual who holds an emergency permit issued by the CTC or for whom a credential
waiver has been granted by the CTC

Prior to requesting that the CTC issue an emergency permit pursuant to item #3 above or a limited
assignment  permit which allows a fully credentialed teacher to teach outside of his/her area of
certification while working toward an added or supplementary authorization, the Board shall
annually approve a Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators. The Declaration of Need
shall be approved by the Board as an action item at a regularly scheduled public Board meeting,
with the entire Declaration of Need being included in the Board agenda. (Education Code 44225,
44225.7; 5 CCR 80023.2, 80026, 80027, 80027.1)

The Declaration of Need shall certify that there is an insufficient number of certificated persons
who meet the district's specified employment criteria for the position(s) and that the district has
made reasonable efforts to recruit individuals who meet the qualifications specified in items #1-2
above. The Declaration of Need shall also indicate the number and type of emergency permits
that the district estimates it will need during the valid period of the Declaration of Need, based on



3

the previous year's actual needs and projections of enrollment.  Whenever the actual number of
permits needed exceeds the estimate by 10 percent, the Board shall revise and resubmit the
Declaration of Need.  (5 CCR 80026)

Whenever it is necessary, to employ noncredentialed teachers to fill a position requiring
certification qualifications, the Superintendent or designee shall provide support and guidance in
accordance with law to ensure the quality of the instructional program.

National Board for Professional Teaching Standards Certification

The Board encourages district teachers to voluntarily complete the requirements for the advanced
certification awarded by the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards.

The Superintendent or designee shall inform all teachers about the program and how to acquire
the necessary application and information materials. In accordance with the collective bargaining
agreement and the district budget, the Superintendent or designee may provide release time, fee
support, a stipend upon completion, or other support to teachers participating in the program.

(cf. 4161.3 - Professional Leaves)

Parental Notifications

Note: The following section is for use by districts that receive federal Title I funds, and may be used or adapted
by other districts at their discretion.

20 USC 6312 requires districts receiving federal Title I funds to provide the following annual notification to
parents/guardians of students in any school receiving Title I funds. Such districts may choose to provide the same
notification to all schools, regardless of whether or not they receive Title I funds. As amended by the Every Student
Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95), 20 USC 6312 no longer requires the notification to include the right of
parents/guardians to request information about a teacher's baccalaureate major or graduate certification or degree
held by the teacher.

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the
parents/guardians of each student attending a school receiving Title I funds that they may request
information regarding the professional qualifications of their child's classroom teacher including,
but not limited to, whether the teacher:  (20 USC 6312)

1. Has met state qualification and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas in
which the teacher provides instruction

2. Is teaching under emergency or other provisional status through which state qualification
or licensing criteria have been waived

3. Is teaching in the field of discipline of his/her certification

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)



4

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians in a timely manner
whenever their child has been assigned, or has been taught for four or more consecutive weeks by,
a teacher who does not meet applicable state certification or licensure requirements at the grade
level and subject area to which the teacher has been assigned.  (20 USC 6312)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
8360-8370  Qualifications of child care personnel
32340-32341 Unlawful issuance of a credential
35186  Complaints regarding teacher vacancy or misassignment
44066  Limitations on certification requirements
44200-44399.1  Teacher credentialing, especially:
44250-44277  Credential types; minimum requirements
44300-44302  Emergency permit
44325-44328  District interns
44330-44355  Certificates and credentials
44420-44440  Revocation and suspension of credentials
44450-44468  University intern program
44830-44929  Employment of certificated persons; requirement of proficiency in basic skills
56060-56063  Substitute teachers in special education
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

6100-6126  Teacher qualifications, No Child Left Behind Act
80001-80674.6  Commission on Teacher Credentialing
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6319  Highly qualified teachers
7801  Definitions, highly qualified teacher

6312  Title I local educational agency plans; notifications regarding teacher qualifications
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

200.55-200.57  Highly qualified teachers
200.61  Parent notification regarding teacher qualifications
COURT DECISIONS
Association of Mexican-American Educators et al. v. State of California and the Commission on Teacher Credentialing,
(1993) 836 F.Supp. 1534

Management Resources:
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS
CL-667 Basic Skills Requirement
CL-856 Provisional Internship Permit
CL 858 Short-Term Staff Permit
13-01 Hiring Hierarchy in Education Code 44225.7, Coded Correspondence, January 30, 2013
Subject Matter Authorization Guideline Book, 2012
Supplementary Authorization Guideline Book, 2012
California Standards for the Teaching Profession, 2009
The Administrator's Assignment Manual, rev. September 2007
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov
Commission on Teacher Credentialing, Credential Information Guide (for employers' use only):
http://www.ctc.ca.gov/credentials/cig
National Board for Professional Teaching Standards: http://www.nbpts.org
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
Policy SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: April 10, 2007 Loyalton, California
revised:   October 14, 2014
revised:   August 9, 2016

http://www.csba.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov
http://www.ctc.ca.gov/credentials/cig
http://www.nbpts.org
http://www.ed.gov


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Certificated Personnel BP 4113

ASSIGNMENT

In order to serve the best interests of students and the educational program, the Governing Board of
Education authorizes the Superintendent or designee to assign certificated personnel to positions for which
their preparation, certification, professional experience, and aptitude qualify them.

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)
(cf. 4112.21 - Interns)
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching Students of Limited English ProficiencyLanguage Learners)
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff)
(cf. 4112.8/4212.8/4312.8 - Employment of Relatives)

Teachers may be assigned to any school within the district in accordance with the collective bargaining
agreement or Board policy.

(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement)

The Board encourages the assignment of experienced and fully credentialed teachers, including those who
have attained National Board for Professional Teaching Standards certification, to schools with the greatest
need to improve student achievement.

Teachers shall be assigned to teach core academic subjects in Title I and non-Title I programs in accordance
with the requirements of the No Child Left Behind Act pertaining to teacher qualifications. (20 USC 6319,
7801; 5 CCR 6100-6126)

(cf. 4112.24 - Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left Behind Act)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

Assignment to Courses/Classes

The Superintendent or designee may shall assign holders of a credential other than an emergency permit,
with their consent, to teach subjects outside their teachers to courses based on the grade level and subject
matter authorized by their credentials.

When there is no credential authorization in departmentalized classes. The requirement for teaching an
elective course, the Superintendent or designee shall, with the assistance of subject matter specialists,
develop procedures to verify the subject matter select the credentialed teacher whose knowledge of the and
skills best prepare him/her to provide instruction in that subject.

Note: The Commission on Teacher Credentialing's (CTC) Administrator's Assignment Manual describes "local teaching
assignment options" available to districts when assigning a teacher before any such assignment is made.outside his/her
credential authorization. See the accompanying administrative regulation for requirements pertaining to assignments to
departmentalized classes in grades K-12 (Education Code 44258.3) or elective courses (Education Code 44258.7).



2

According to the CTC manual, it is inappropriate to use a local teaching assignment option for an individual who holds an
emergency permit, provisional internship permit (PIP), or short-term staff permit (STSP). For information about the
circumstances under which persons holding these permits may be employed, see BP/AR 4112.2 - Certification. If a district
uses a local teaching assignment option for a holder of an intern credential, the CTC cautions that the district must ensure
that the individual meets the specific requirements of the teaching assignment option as well as the requirements of the intern
credential; see BP/AR 4112.21 - Interns for further information about intern programs.

The CTC manual indicates that a district may use the options at its discretion. The following paragraph may be revised to
reflect options available in the district.

When specifically authorized by law or regulation, the Superintendent or designee may assign a teacher,
with his/her consent, to a position outside his/her credential authorization in accordance with the local
teaching assignment options described in the Commission on Teacher Credentialing's (CTC)
Administrator's Assignment Manual. Assignments made pursuant to Education Code 44256, 44258.2, and
44263 shall be annually approved by Board resolution. In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall
reference in district records the statute or regulation under which the assignment is authorized.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Note: Education Code 44258.9 provides that the County Superintendent of Schools is responsible for monitoring district
assignment practices and vacancies, as defined in Education Code 33126, and reporting the results to the CTC.  Pursuant to
Education Code 44258.9, the County Superintendent must annually monitor and review assignment practices in (1) schools
and districts likely to have problems with teacher misassignment and vacancies based on past experience and other available
information, and (2) schools ranked in deciles 1-3 on the statewide Academic Performance Index (API). However, the API
has been suspended pending transition to a new state accountability system. All other schools undergo review of assignment
practices on a four-year cycle.  In counties in which there is a single school district, the CTC is responsible for monitoring
teacher assignments.

Education Code 33126 requires that vacancies and misassignments be reported on the School Accountability Report Card.
Also, Education Code 35186 requires districts to develop procedures by which a parent/guardian can file a complaint related
to teacher misassignments or vacancies.  See AR/E 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures.

Pursuant to Education Code 44258.9, the County Superintendent is required to notify any certificated administrator
responsible for a misassignment and advise him/her to correct it within 30 calendar days.  The County Superintendent is also
required to notify the Superintendent of any district where five percent or more of the certificated teachers in the secondary
schools are misassigned, advising him/her to correct the misassignments within 120 calendar days. If a teacher believes he/she
has been misassigned, he/she is authorized, after exhausting any local remedies, to file a written notification with the County
Superintendent, who must advise the teacher as to the legality of the assignment within 15 working days.

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board on any teacher misassignments or
vacancies.  He/she teacher assignments and vacancies, including the number and type of assignments made
outside a teacher's credential authorization through a local teaching assignment option. Whenever district
misassignments and vacancies are reviewed by the County Superintendent of Schools or CTC, as
applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board the results of the County
Superintendent's review of district misassignments and vacancies, the results to the Board and shall provide
recommendations for remedying any identified issues.

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Committee on Assignments



3

The Superintendent or designee may establish a committee on assignments which may grant approval for
the voluntary assignment of full-time teachers to teach one or more elective courses outside their credential
authorization in an area for which they have special skills or preparation. (Education Code 44258.7)

Equitable Distribution of Qualified Teachers

Note: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. 20 USC 6312, as amended by the Every Student
Succeeds Act (ESSA) (P.L. 114-95), maintains the requirement that the Title I local
educational agency (LEA) plan include a description of how the district will identify and address, consistent with the state's
ESSA plan, any disparities that result in low-income or minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. The LEA plan will be transitioned out at the end of the 2016-17 school
year. According to the California Department of Education's (CDE) Every Student Succeeds Act 2016-17 School Year
Transition Plan (April 2016), districts will meet Title I planning requirements through the local control and accountability
plan and the consolidated application reporting system beginning with the 2017-18 school year.

According to the U.S. Department of Education's Transitioning to the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA): Frequently Asked
Questions (May 2016), the approved State Plan to Ensure Equitable Access to Excellent Educators remains in effect through
the 2016-17 school year and states may, but are not required to, amend the plan. The CDE's transition plan indicates that
districts will not be required to participate in the state's Compliance Monitoring, Interventions and Sanctions (CMIS) program
in the 2016-17 school year and that the CDE intends to update the CMIS with new guidelines.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that highly qualified and experienced teachers are equitably
distributed among district schools, including those with higher than average levels of low-income, minority,
and/or academically underperforming students. He/she shall annually report to the Board comparisons of
teacher qualifications across district schools, including the number of teachers serving under a provisional
internship permit, short-term staff permit, intern credential, emergency permit, or credential waiver.

(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)

Strategies for ensuring equitable access to experienced teachers may include, but are not limited to,
incentives for voluntary transfers, provision of professional development, and/or programs to recruit and
retain effective teachers.

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(cf. 4111 - Recruitment and Selection)
(cf. 4114 - Transfers)
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
33126  School accountability report card
35035  Additional powers and duties of superintendent
35186 Complaint process
37616  Assignment of teachers to year-round schools
44225.6  Commission report to the legislature re: teachers
44250-44277 Credentials and assignments of teachers

44395-44398  Incentives for assigning NBPTS-certified teachers to high-priority schools
44314  Subject matter programs, approved subjects
44824  Assignment of teachers to weekend classes
44955  Reduction in number of employees
GOVERNMENT CODE
3543.2  Scope of representation
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

6100-6126 Teacher qualifications, No Child Left Behind Act



4

80003-80005  Credential authorizations
80020-80020.5  Additional assignment authorizations
80335 Performance of unauthorized professional services
80339-80339.6  Unauthorized certificated employee assignment
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6319 Highly qualified teachers
7801 Definitions, highly qualified teacher
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
200.55-200.57 Highly qualified teachers

6311  State plan
6312  Local educational agency plans
6601-6651  Teacher and Principal Training and Recruiting Fund

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
California State Plan to Ensure Equitable Access to Excellent Educators
Every Student Succeeds Act 2016-17 School Year Transition Plan, April 2016
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS
Administrator's Assignment Manual - Updates and Revisions, May 2014
The Administrator's Assignment Manual, rev. September 2007
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE
Transitioning to the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA): Frequently Asked Questions, rev. May 4, 2016
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants: ESEA Title II, Part A, rev. October 5, 2006
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
Commission on Teacher Credentialing:  http://www.ctc.ca.gov

Policy  SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:   August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.ctc.ca.gov


Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3513.3(a)

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS

Notifications

Information about the district's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures shall be
communicated clearly to employees, parents/guardians, students, and the community.  (Health and
Safety Code 104420)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The Superintendent or designee may disseminate this information through annual written
notifications, district and school web sites, student and parent handbooks, and/or other appropriate
methods of communication.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that signs stating "Tobacco use is prohibited" shall be
are prominently displayed at all entrances to school property.  (Health and Safety Code 104420,
104559)

Enforcement/Discipline

Any employee or student who violates the district's tobacco-free schools policy shall be asked to
refrain from smoking and shall be subject to disciplinary action as appropriate.

(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

Any other person who violates the district's policy on tobacco-free schools shall be informed of
the district's policy and asked to refrain from smoking.  If the person fails to comply with this
request, the Superintendent or designee may:

1. Direct the person to leave school property

2. Request local law enforcement assistance in removing the person from school premises



3. If the person repeatedly violates the tobacco-free schools policy, prohibit him/her from
entering district property for a specified period of time

(cf. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders)
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)

The Superintendent or designee shall not be required to physically eject a nonemployee who is
smoking or to request that the nonemployee refrain from smoking under circumstances involving
a risk of physical harm to the district or any employee.  (Labor Code 6404.5)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  May 10, 2011
revised:  August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3516.3

EARTHQUAKE EMERGENCY PROCEDURE SYSTEM

Earthquake Preparedness

Earthquake emergency procedures shall be established in every school building having an
occupant capacity of 50 or more students, or more than one classroom, and shall be incorporated
into the comprehensive safety plan.  (Education Code 32282)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

Note: Government Code 8607 and 19 CCR 2400-2450 require districts to be prepared to respond to emergencies
using the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS).  By Executive Order, the Governor has required
each local agency to integrate the National Incident Management System with its SEMS. Districts should contact
their local emergency management agency for further assistance. See BP/AR 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster
Preparedness Plan.

Earthquake emergency procedures shall be aligned with the Standardized Emergency Management
System and the National Incident Management System.  (Government Code 8607; 19 CCR 2400-
2450)

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

Note: The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) offers a number of publications that
may assist the district in surveying school facilities and outside areas for potential earthquake hazards.

The Superintendent or designee may work with the California Governor's Office of Emergency
Management AgencyServices and the Seismic Safety Commission to develop and establish the
earthquake emergency procedures.  (Education Code 32282)

Earthquake emergency procedures shall outline the roles and responsibilities of students and staff
during and after an earthquake.

Earthquake emergency procedures shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following:
(Education Code 32282)

1. A school building disaster plan, ready for implementation at any time, for maintaining the
safety and care of students and staff

2. A drop procedure whereby each student and staff member takes cover under a table or
desk, dropping to his/her knees, with the head protected by the arms and the back to the
windows or currently recommended practices or guidelines.



2

Drop procedures shall be practiced at least once each school quarter in elementary schools
and at least once each semester in secondary schools.

3. Protective measures to be taken before, during, and following an earthquake

4. A program to ensure that students and staff are aware of and properly trained in the
earthquake emergency procedure system

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Staff and students shall be informed of the dangers to expect in an earthquake and procedures to
be followed. Students shall be instructed to remain silent and follow directions given by staff in
such an emergency.  Staff and students also shall be taught safety precautions to take if they are in
the open or on the way to or from school when an earthquake occurs.

Earthquake emergency procedures shall designate primary and alternative locations outside of
buildings, which may include areas off campus if necessary, where individuals on a school site
will assemble following evacuation.  In designating such areas, the Superintendent or designee
shall consider potential post-earthquake hazards outside school buildings including, but not limited
to, power lines, trees, covered walkways, chain link fences that may be an electric shock hazard,
and areas near buildings that may have debris.

Earthquake emergency procedures also shall outline primary and alternative evacuation routes that
avoid areas with potential hazards to the extent possible.  The needs of students with disabilities
shall be considered when planning evacuation routes.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify at least one individual within each building to
determine if an evacuation is necessary, the best evacuation location, and the best route to that
location when an earthquake occurs.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify potential earthquake hazards in classrooms and other
district facilities, including, but not limited to, areas where the main gas supply or electric current
enters the building, suspended ceilings, pendant light fixtures, large windows, stairwells, science
laboratories, storage areas for hazardous materials, shop areas, and
unsecured furniture and equipment.  To the extent possible, dangers presented by such potential
hazards shall be minimized by securing equipment and furnishings and removing heavy objects
from high shelves.

Earthquake While Indoors at School

When an earthquake occurs, the following actions shall be taken inside buildings and classrooms:

1. Staff shall have students perform the drop procedure. Students should stay in the drop
position until the emergency is over or until further instructions are given.



3

2. In laboratories, burners should be extinguished, if possible, before taking cover.

3. As soon as possible, staff shall move students away from windows, shelves, and heavy
objects or furniture that may fall.

Note: In The ABCs of Post-Earthquake Evacuation: A Checklist for School Administrators and Faculty, the Cal
OES advises that evacuation should never be automatic as there may be as much danger outside the facility as
inside, planned routes may not be clear, and lighting inside the building may be shut off.

4. After the earthquake, the principal or designee shall determine whether planned evacuation
routes and assembly locations are safe and shall communicate with teachers and other staff.

5. When directed by the principal or designee to evacuate, or if classrooms or other facilities
present dangerous hazards that require immediate evacuation, staff shall account for all
students under their supervision and shall evacuate the building in an orderly manner.

Earthquake While Outdoors on School Grounds

When an earthquake occurs, the following actions shall be taken by staff or other persons in
authority who are outdoors on school grounds:

1. Staff shall direct students to walk away from buildings, trees, overhead power lines, power
poles, or exposed wires.

2. Staff shall have students perform the drop procedure.

3. Staff shall have students stay in the open until the earthquake is over or until further
directions are given.

Earthquake While on the Bus

If students are on the school bus when an earthquake occurs, the bus driver shall take proper
precautions to ensure student safety, which may include pulling over to the side of the road or
driving to a location away from outside hazards, if possible.  Following the earthquake, the driver
shall contact the Superintendent or designee for instructions before proceeding on the route or, if
such contact is not possible, drive to an evacuation or assembly location.

(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)

Subsequent Emergency Procedures

After an earthquake episode has subsided, the following actions shall be taken:

1. Staff shall extinguish small fires if safe.

2. Staff shall provide first aid to any injured students, take roll, and report missing students to
the principal or designee.



4

3. Staff and students shall refrain from lighting any stoves or burners or operating any
electrical switches until the area is declared safe.

4. All buildings shall be inspected for water and gas leaks, electrical breakages, and large
cracks or earth slippage affecting buildings.

5. The principal or designee shall post staff at safe distances from all building entrances and
instruct staff and students to remain outside the buildings until they are declared safe.

6. The principal or designee shall request assistance as needed from the county or city civil
defense office, fire and police departments, city and county building inspectors, and utility
companies and shall confer with them regarding the advisability of closing the school.

7. The principal or designee shall contact the Superintendent or designee and request further
instructions after assessing the earthquake damage.

8. The Superintendent or designee shall provide updates to parents/guardians of district
students and members of the community about the incident, any safety issues, and follow-
up directions.

(cf. 1112 - Media Relations)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
32280-32289  School safety plans
GOVERNMENT CODE
3100  Public employees as disaster service workers
8607  Standardized Emergency Management System
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19
2400-2450  Standardized Emergency Management System

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCYSERVICES PUBLICATIONS
The ABCs of Post-Earthquake Evacuation: A Checklist for School Administrators and Faculty
Guide and Checklist for Nonstructural Earthquake Hazards in California Schools, January 2003
School Emergency Response: Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLICATIONS
Guidebook for Developing a School Earthquake Safety Program, 1990
WEB SITES
American Red Cross:  http://www.redcross.org
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services: http://www.caloes.ca.gov
California Seismic Safety Commission:  http://www.seismic.ca.gov
Federal Emergency Management Agency: http://www.fema.gov/hazards/earthquakes
National Incident Management System: http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  June 10, 2008
revised:  May 10, 2011
revised:  August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California

http://www.redcross.org
http://www.caloes.ca.gov
http://www.seismic.ca.gov
http://www.fema.gov/hazards/earthquakes
http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3553

FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS

Note: Education Code 49550 requires all districts to provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal during each
school day to low-income students, defined in Education Code 49552 as those who meet federal eligibility criteria
for free and reduced-price meals. Pursuant to 42 USC 1758 and 1773, districts that participate in the National
School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program may receive reimbursement for free and reduced-price meals at a higher
rate than that provided for meals for noneligible students. In addition, state funding may be available through the
State Meal Program (Education Code 49490-49494). The district may apply to the California Department of
Education (CDE) for available state and federal funds.

The requirement to provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal to needy students applies during summer
school sessions unless the district receives a waiver from the State Board of Education (SBE) under the conditions
described in Education Code 49548. In order to receive a waiver, the district is required to submit a waiver request
no later than 60 days before the last regular meeting of the SBE before the start of the summer school session for
which the waiver is sought. Funding to support the provision of summer school meals is available through the
Seamless Summer Feeding Option and/or Summer Food Service Program (Education Code 49547.5; 42 USC
1761); see BP/AR 3552 - Summer Meal Program.

Student eligibility for free and reduced-price meals serves as the basis for identifying students as low income for
a variety of purposes, including, but not limited to, state allocations of supplemental and concentration funding
within the local control funding formula. Districts must use such funding to increase or improve services for low-
income students and other populations of "unduplicated students" (see BP/AR 3100 - Budget) and must establish
goals and specific actions for low-income students in the local control and accountability plan (see BP/AR 0460 -
Local Control and Accountability Plan).

The following policy is mandated for any district that authorizes employee access to students' free and reduced-
price meal eligibility information for the disaggregation of academic achievement data and other specified
purposes; see section "Confidentiality/Release of Records" below.

The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, health,
and learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and encourage the
participation of students from low-income families in the district's food service program.

(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program)
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs)

The district shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal each school day, free of charge
or at a reduced price, for students whose families meet federal eligibility criteria. (Education Code
49550, 49552)



2

Note: In order to be reimbursed for free and reduced-price meals, a school must meet federal and/or state nutritional
guidelines in 7 CFR 210.10 and 220.8 and Education Code 49430 and 49430.7, as described in AR 3550 - Food
Service/Child Nutrition Program.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals provided through the free and reduced-
price meals program meet applicable state and/or federal nutritional standards in accordance with
law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)

Note: The federally funded Special Milk Program (42 USC 1772; 7 CFR 215.1, 215.7) assists in providing milk
to students at reasonable prices in schools that do not participate in the National School Lunch or Breakfast
Program or Summer Food Service Program. Participating districts may, at their discretion, choose to provide milk
at no charge to students who qualify for free and reduced-price meals. The following optional paragraph is for use
by districts that choose to provide free milk to eligible students.

Schools participating in the Special Milk Program pursuant to 42 USC 1772 shall provide milk at
no charge to students who meet federal eligibility criteria for free or reduced-price meals.

Note: Education Code 49557 requires the district to develop a plan ensuring that students receiving free and
reduced-price meals are not treated differently in the implementation of the food services program. See the
accompanying administrative regulation for plan requirements.

The Board shall approve, and shall submit to the California Department of Education for approval,
a plan that ensures that students eligible to receive free or reduced-price meals and milk are not
treated differently from other students. (Education Code 49557)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

Confidentiality/Release of Records

All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program
shall be confidential and may not be released except as provided by law and authorized by the
Board or pursuant to a court order. (Education Code 49558)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Note: The remainder of this section should be revised to reflect the purposes for sharing free and reduced-price
eligibility information that are authorized by the Governing Board. Districts wishing to use free and reduced-price
meal records for the following purposes are mandated by Education Code 49558 to adopt a policy authorizing
employee access. See the accompanying administrative regulation for additional requirements applicable to
districts that authorize such access.

The Board authorizes designated employees to use individual records pertaining to student
eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program for the following purposes of: (Education
Code 49558)



3

1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data

(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

2.In any school identified as a Title I program improvement school pursuant to 20 USC 6316,
identification of students eligible for school choice and supplemental educational services

Note: Education Code 49558 allows districts to use the name and eligibility status of students participating in the
free and reduced-price meal program to identify students eligible for school choice and supplemental educational
services (SES) in Title I schools identified for program improvement. However, the Every Student Succeeds Act
(P.L. 114-95) repealed 20 USC 6316 which had required the provision of student transfers and SES.  In lieu of
SES, beginning in the 2016-17 school year, districts are required pursuant to the CDE's Every Student Succeeds
Act 2016-17 School Year Transition Plan to provide alternative supports, defined and administered by the district,
to eligible students (i.e., students who would have been eligible for SES in schools with the greatest need). See
BP/AR 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools and BP 6179 - Supplemental Instruction. Although
Education Code 49558 has not yet been amended to reflect the repeal of 20 USC 6316 and does not expressly
authorize the use of free and reduced-price meal information to determine students' eligibility for alternative
supports, CSBA believes that the use of such information would be necessary to determine student's eligibility for
alternative supports. The district should consult legal counsel if it has questions about the use of free and reduced-
price meal information for these or other purposes.

2. Identification of students eligible for alternative supports in any school identified as a Title
I program improvement school

(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

Note: According to CDE Management Bulletin SNP-12-2015, Education Code 49558 does not prohibit the sharing
of free and reduced-price meal application information to other districts/schools for the purpose of determining
students' eligibility. The district may provide only the student's name and eligibility status unless the applicant
consents to the sharing of additional information.

If a student transfers from the district to another district, charter school, county office of education
program, or private school, the Superintendent or designee may share the student's meal eligibility
information to the other educational agency to assist in the continuation of the student's meal
benefits.

The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student
participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to another school district, charter school,
or county office of education that is serving a student living in the same household for purposes
related to program eligibility and data used in local control funding formula calculations.
(Education Code 49558)

The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student
participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to the Superintendent of Public Instruction
for purposes of determining allocations under the local control funding formula and for assessing
accountability of that funding. (Education Code 49558)



4

The Superintendent or designee may release information on the school lunch program application
to the local agency that determines eligibility for participation in the Medi-Cal program if the
student has been approved for free meals or, if included in the agreement with the local agency,
for reduced-price meals. He/she also may release information on the school lunch application to
the local agency that determines eligibility for CalFresh or another nutrition assistance program
authorized under 7 CFR 210.1 if the student has been approved for free or reduced-price meals.
Information may be released for these purposes only if the student's parent/guardian consents to
the sharing of information and the district has entered into a memorandum of understanding with
the local agency which, at a minimum, includes the roles and responsibilities of the district and
local agency and the process for sharing the information. After sharing information with the local
agency for purposes of determining eligibility for that program, no further information shall be
shared unless otherwise authorized by law. (Education Code 49557.2, 49557.3, 49558)

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
48980 Notice at beginning of term
49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001
49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs
49500-49505 School meals
49510-49520 Nutrition
49530-49536 Child Nutrition Act of 1974
49547-49548.3 Comprehensive nutrition service
49550-49562 Meals for needy students
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
15510 Mandatory meals for needy students
15530-15535 Nutrition education
15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1232g Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act
6301-6514 Title I programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
1751-1769j School lunch program
1771-1791 Child nutrition, especially:
1773 School breakfast program
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7
210.1-210.31 National School Lunch Program
220.10-220.21 National School Breakfast Program
245.1-245.13 Determination of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE
14005.41 Basic health care

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, 2012
Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, 2012
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION MANAGEMENT BULLETINS
NSD SNP-12-2015 Updated Guidance on Sharing of School Meal Applications and the Passing of
Assembly Bill 1599, July 2015
USDA-SNP-07-2010 Change in Free and Reduced-Price Meal Application Approval Process, September
2010
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS



5

Feed More Kids, Improve Program Participation
Direct Certification Implementation Checklist, May 2008
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS
Eligibility Manual for School Meals: Determining and Verifying Eligibility, July 2015
Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Summer 2002
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu
California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org
California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition):
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  June 14, 2011 Loyalton, California
revised:  April 12, 2016

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu
http://www.californiahealthykids.org
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org
http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3553

FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS

Applications

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's application form for free and
reduced-price meals and related materials include the statements specified in Education Code
49557 and 7 CFR 245.5. The district's application packet shall include the notifications and
information listed in Education Code 49557.2.

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program)

The application form and related information shall be distributed in paper form to all
parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year and shall be available to students at all times
during the school day. (Education Code 48980, 49520; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.5)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

In addition, the district application form for free and reduced price meals shall be available online,
the. The online application form shall require completion of only those questions necessary for
determining eligibility, contain clear instructions for families that are homeless or migrant, and
comply with other requirements specified in Education Code 49557.

An application form and related information shall also be provided whenever a new student is
enrolled.

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall send a public release,
containing the same information supplied to parents/guardians and including eligibility criteria, to
local media, the local unemployment office, and any major employers in the district attendance
area contemplating large layoffs. Copies of the public release shall be made available upon request
to any interested person. (7 CFR 245.5)

Eligibility

The Superintendent or designee shall determine students' eligibility for the free and reduced-price
meals program based on the criteria specified in 42 USC 1758 and 1773 and 7 CFR 245.1-245.13
and made available by the California Department of Education.



2

When authorized by law, participants in other federal or state programs may be directly certified,
without further application, for enrollment in the free and reduced-price meals program.
(Education Code 49561; 42 USC 1758)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

Verification of Eligibility

Not later than November 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the eligibility
of a sample of household applications approved for the school year in accordance with the sample
sizes and procedures specified in 42 USC 1758 and 7 CFR 245.6a. (42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.6a)

If the review indicates that the initial eligibility determination is correct, the Superintendent or
designee shall verify the approved household application. If the review indicates that the initial
eligibility determination is incorrect, the Superintendent or designee shall: (42 USC 1758; 7 CFR
245.6a)

1. If the eligibility status changes from reduced price to free, make the increased benefits
immediately available and notify the household of the change in benefits

2. If the eligibility status changes from free to reduced price, first verify the application, then
notify the household of the correct eligibility status, and, when required by law, send a
notice of adverse action as described below

3. If the eligibility status changes from free or reduced price to paid, send the household a
notice of adverse action as described below

If any household is to receive a reduction or termination of benefits as a result of verification
activities, or if the household fails to cooperate with verification efforts, the Superintendent or
designee shall reduce or terminate benefits, as applicable, and shall properly document and retain
on file in the district the reasons for ineligibility. He/she also shall send a notice of adverse action
to any household that is to receive a reduction or termination of benefits. Such notice shall be
provided 10 days prior to the actual reduction or termination of benefits. The notice shall advise
the household of: (7 CFR 245.6a)

1. The change and the reasons for the change

2. The right to appeal, when the appeal must be filed to ensure continued benefits while
awaiting a hearing and decision, and instructions on how to appeal

3. The right to reapply at any time during the school year

Confidentiality/Release of Records

The Superintendent designates the following district employee(s) to use individual records



3

pertaining to student participation in the free and reduced-price meals program for the purpose of
disaggregation of academic achievement data or for the identification of students who are eligible
for alternative supports in a Title I program improvement school:

1. School Administrative and Counseling Staff

2. District Administrative Staff assigned to the District's Assessment Program

3. Teachers involved with the District's Assessment Program

4. Staff involved in Categorical Programs

In using the records for such purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that:
(Education Code 49558)

1. No individual indicators of participation in the free and reduced-price meals program are
maintained in the permanent records of any student if not otherwise allowed by law.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

2. Information regarding individual student participation in the free and reduced-price meals
program is not publicly released.

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)

3. All other confidentiality provisions required by law are met.

4. Information collected regarding individual students certified to participate in the free and
reduced-price meals program is destroyed when no longer needed for its intended purpose.

Nondiscrimination Plan

The district's plan for students receiving free or reduced-price meals shall ensure the following:
(Education Code 49557; 42 USC 1758)

1. The names of the students shall not be published, posted, or announced in any manner, or
used for any purpose other than the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs,
unless otherwise provided by law.

2. There shall be no overt identification of any of the students by the use of special tokens or
tickets or by any other means.

3. The students shall not be required to work for their meals or for milk.

4. The students shall not be required to use a separate dining area, go through a separate
serving line or entrance, or consume their meals or milk at a different time.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)



4

(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)

When more than one lunch, breakfast, or type of milk is offered, the students shall have the same
choice of meals or milk as is available to those students who pay the full price. (Education Code
49557; 7 CFR 245.8)

Prices

The maximum price that shall be charged to eligible students for reduced-price meals shall be 40
cents for lunch and 30 cents for breakfast. (42 USC 1758, 1773)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: June 10, 2008
revised: June 14, 2011
revised: April 12, 2016 Loyalton, California
revised:     August 9, 2016



All Personnel E 4112.9(a)
4212.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS 4312.9

Note:  The following exhibit lists notices which the law requires be provided to employees. See the referenced
Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about related program and notice
requirements.

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  To All Employees

At the beginning of school year Education Code AR 4119.11 The district's policy on
or upon employment 231.5; Government 4219.11 sexual harassment, legal

Code 12950; 2 CCR 4319.11 remedies, complaints
11023

Annually to all employees, Education Code AR 3514.2 Use of pesticide product,
and 72 hours before pesticide 17612 active ingredients, Internet
application address to access information

To all employees, prior to Education Code BP 6117 Public hearing on year-round
implementing year-round 37616 program
schedule

To all employees, prior to Education Code AR 6112 Public hearing on alternative
implementing alternative schedule 46162 schedule

Annually to all employees Education Code AR 1312.3 Uniform complaint procedures,
49013; 5 CCR 4622 BP 0460 appeals, civil law remedies,

BP  3260 coordinator, complaints about
student fees and local control
and accountability plan

Annually to all employees Education Code AR 5141.21 Request for volunteers to be
49414 trained to administer

epinephrine auto-injectors

Electronically to all employees, Education Code AR 5141.21 Request for volunteers to
no more than twice per school 49414.7 administer emergency
year per child needing antiseizure medication;
medication training to be provided

To all employees Government Code BP 4136 Prohibition of activities that
1126 4236 are inconsistent, incompatible,

4336 in conflict with, or inimical to
duties; discipline; appeal



E 4112.9(b)
4212.9
4312.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  To All Employees (continued)

Prior to beginning employment Government Code AR 4112.3 Oath or affirmation of
3102 4212.3 allegiance required of disaster

4312.3 service workers

To all employees Government Code BP 4020 District's drug- and alcohol-
8355; 41 USC 8102 BP 4159 free workplace; actions to be

4259 taken if violated; available
4359 employee assistance programs

Upon placement of automated Health and Safety AR 5141 Proper use of AED; location
external defibrillator (AED) in Code 1797.196 of all AEDs on campus,
school, and annually thereafter sudden cardiac arrest, school's

emergency response plan

To all employees, if the Health and Safety AR 3513.3 District's tobacco-free schools
district receives Tobacco-Use Code 104420 policy and enforcement
Prevention Education funds procedures

Annually to all employees, or Health and Safety AR 4119.43 AIDS and hepatitis B,
more frequently if there is new Code 120875, 4219.43 including methods to prevent
information 120880 4319.43 exposure

To all employees, with each Labor Code 246 AR 4161.1 Amount of sick leave available
paycheck 4361.1

AR 4261.1

To covered employees and Labor Code AR 4154 Availability of COBRA/
former employees 2800.2 4254 Cal-COBRA continuation

4354 and conversion coverage;
statement encouraging careful
examination of options before
declining coverage

To every new employee, either Labor Code BP 4157.1 Workers' compensation
at the time employee is hired 3551 4257.1 benefits, how to obtain medical
or by end of first pay period 4357.1 care, role of primary physician,

form for reporting personal



physician/chiropractor

Prior to beginning employment Penal Code AR 5141.4 Status as a mandated reporter
11165.7, 11166.5 of child abuse, reporting

obligations, confidentiality
rights, copy of law

E 4112.9(c)
4212.9
4312.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  To All Employees (continued)

Upon employment, and when Unemployment AR 4154 Disability insurance rights and
employee goes on leave Insurance Code 4254 benefits
for specified reasons 2613 4354

To all employees via employee 2 CCR 11096; AR 4161.8 Benefits through Family and
handbook, or to each new 29 CFR 825.300 4261.8 Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
employee 4361.8 and California Family Rights

Act (CFRA); obligation to
provide 30 days' notice of
need for leave when possible

To all employees and job 34 CFR 104.8, BP 0410 District's policy on
applicants 106.9 BP 4030 nondiscrimination and related

complaint procedures

Annually to all employees 40 CFR 763.84, AR 3514 Availability of asbestos
763.93 management plan; inspections,

response actions, post-response
actions planned or in progress

II.  To Certificated Employees

To eligible certificated Education Code AR 4121 Criteria for membership in
employees in a timely manner, 22455.5 retirement system; right to
and to part-time and substitute elect membership at any time
certificated employees
within 30 days of hire

Upon employment of a Education Code AR 4117.14 Postretirement earnings
retired certificated individual 22461 4317.14 limitation or employment

restriction; monthly report of
compensation



To certificated employees Education Code AR 4115 District regulations related to
35171 BP 4315 performance evaluations

30 days before last day of Education Code AR 4115 Copy of employee's evaluation
school year for instructional 44663
staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated
staff, in any year in which
employee is evaluated

E 4112.9(d)
4212.9
4312.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

II.  To Certificated Employees (continued)

To a certificated employee Education Code AR 4115 Notice and description of the
with unsatisfactory evaluation, 44664 unsatisfactory performance
once per year for probationary
employee or at least once every
other year for permanent employee

By May 30, if district issues Education Code AR 4112.1 Request that the employee
reemployment notices to 44842 notify district of intent to
certificated employees remain in service next year

To certificated employees Education Code AR 4112.1 Employment status and salary
upon employment, and to 44916 AR 4121
nonpermanent employees in
July of each school year

To probationary employees in Education Code AR 4117.6 Whether or not employee
district with ADA of 250 or 44929.21 is reelected for next school
more by March 15 of year
employee's second consecutive
year of employment

When certificated employee is Education Code BP 4118 Notice of charges, procedures,
subject to disciplinary action 44934, 44934.1, AR 4118 and employee rights; intent to
for cause, at any time of year 44936 dismiss or suspend 30 days
or, for charge of unsatisfactory after notice
performance, during instructional
year

To certificated employee charged Education Code BP 4118 Notice of deficiency and
with unprofessional conduct, at 44938 opportunity to correct
least 45 days prior to suspension/
dismissal notice



To certificated employee charged Education Code BP 4118 Notice of deficiency and
with unsatisfactory performance, 44938 opportunity to correct
at least 90 days prior to
suspension/dismissal notice or
prior to last quarter of school year

To certificated employee charged Education Code AR 4118 Notice of intent to dismiss
with mandatory leave of absence 44940.5 30 days from notice unless
offense, within 10 days of entry employee demands hearing
of judgment in proceedings

E 4112.9(e)
4212.9
4312.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

II.  To Certificated Employees (continued)

To probationary employees Education Code AR 4118 Reasons for dismissal and
30 days prior to dismissal during 44948.3 opportunity to appeal
school year, but not later than
March 15 for second-year
probationary employees

By March 15 when necessary Education Code BP 4117.3 Reasons for personnel
to reduce certificated personnel, 44949, 44955 reduction and employees' right
with final notice by May 15 to hearing; final notice of

Board decision re: termination

On or before June 30, to Education Code BP 4121 District's decision not to
temporary employee who 44954 reelect employee for
served 75 percent of school year following school year
but will be released

To teacher, when a student Education Code AR 4158 Student has committed
engages in or is reasonably 49079 4258 specified act that constitutes
suspected of specified acts 4358 ground for suspension or

expulsion

To certificated employee upon 5 CCR 80303 AR 4117.7 Contents of state regulation
change in employment status 4317.7 re: report to Commission on
due to alleged misconduct or Teacher Credentialing
while allegation is pending

III.  To Classified Employees



To classified employee charged Education Code AR 4218 Notice of intent to dismiss in
with mandatory leave of 44940.5 30 days
absence offense, in merit system
district

When classified employee is Education Code AR 4218 Notice of charges, procedures,
subject to disciplinary action 45113 and employee rights
for cause, in nonmerit district

To classified employees at Education Code AR 4217.3 Notice of layoff and
least 60 days prior to layoff, or 45117 reemployment rights
by April 29 for specially funded
program that expires at end of
school year

E 4112.9(f)
4212.9
4312.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

III.  To Classified Employees (continued)

To classified employees upon Education Code AR 4212 Employee's class specification,
employment and upon each 45169 salary data, assignment or
change in classification work location, duty hours,

prescribed workweek

To classified permanent Education Code AR 4261.1 Exhaustion of leave,
employee whose leave 45192, 45195 AR 4261.11 opportunity to request
is exhausted additional leave

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 1234 AR 3542 Expiration date of driver's
school activity bus drivers license, driver's certificate and
prior to expiration of medical certificate; need to
specified documents renew

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 2480 AR 3542 Limitations on vehicle
school activity bus drivers idling; consequences of not
upon employment and at complying
least once per year thereafter

To school bus drivers, prior to 49 CFR 382.601 BP 4112.42 Explanation of federal
district drug testing program 4212.42 requirements for drug testing
and thereafter upon employment 4312.42 program and district's policy

IV.  To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel



To deputy, associate, or Education Code BP 4312.1 Decision not to reelect or
assistant superintendent or 35031 reemploy upon expiration of
senior manager of classified contract or term
service, at least 45 days before
expiration of contract

Upon request by administrative Education Code AR 4313.2 Statement of the reasons for
or supervisory employee 44896 the release or reassignment
transferred to teaching position

By March 15 to employee Education Code AR 4313.2 Notice that employee may be
who may be released/reassigned 44951 released or reassigned the
the following school year following school year

E 4112.9(g)
4212.9
4312.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

V.  To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

In the event of a breach of Civil Code 1798.21 BP 3580 Types of records affected,
security of district records, date of breach, description
to affected employees of incident, and, as applicable,

contact information for credit
reporting agencies

Prior to placing derogatory Education Code AR 4112.6 Notice of derogatory
information in personnel file 44031 4212.6 information, opportunity to

4312.6 review and comment

To employees who volunteer Education Code AR 5141.21 Defense and indemnification
to administer epinephrine 49414 from civil liability by the
auto-injector district

24 hours before Board meets in Government Code BB 9321 Employee's right to have
closed session to hear complaints 54957 complaints/charges heard in
or charges against employee open session

When taking disciplinary action Government Code BP 4119.23 Law prohibiting disclosure of
against employee for disclosure 54963 4219.23 confidential information
of confidential information 4319.23 obtained in closed session



Within one working day of Labor Code 3553, BP 4157.1 Potential eligibility for
work-related injury or 5401 4257.1 workers' compensation
victimization of crime 4357.1 benefits, claim form

When adverse employment Penal Code 11105, AR 4112.5 Copy of DOJ notification
action is based on DOJ criminal 11105.2 4212.5
history information or 4312.5
subsequent arrest notification

To any employee with 8 CCR 3204, AR 4119.42 The existence, location, and
exposure to blood or other 5193 4219.42 availability of exposure and
potentially infectious materials, 4319.42 medical records; person
upon initial employment and at responsible for maintaining
least annually thereafter and providing access to

records; right to access records

To any employee assigned to a 8 CCR 5191 AR 3514.1 Location and availability of
work area where hazardous chemical hygiene plan,
chemicals are present, upon exposure limits, signs and
initial assignment and upon new symptoms of exposure,
exposure situation location of reference material

E 4112.9(h)
4212.9
4312.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS (continued)

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

V.  To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

To any employee who may 8 CCR 5194 AR 3514.1 Any presence of hazardous
be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area,
substances in the work area, location and availability of
upon initial assignment and hazard communication
when new hazard is program, new material safety
introduced into work area data sheet, employee rights

To employee eligible for 38 USC 4334 AR 4161.5 Notice of rights, benefits, and
military leave 4261.5 obligations under military

4361.5 leave

Within five days of employee's 29 CFR 825.300 AR 4161.8 Designation of leave as
request for FMLA leave, 4261.8 FMLA or non-FMLA; if not
receipt of supporting 4361.8 eligible, reason not eligible;
information, or district's requirement to use paid leave;
knowledge that the requested any requirement for fitness-
leave may qualify as FMLA for-duty certification; any
leave subsequent changes in



designation notice

Whenever notice of eligibility 29 CFR 825.300 AR 4161.8 Rights and responsibilities re:
for FMLA is provided to 4261.8 use of FMLA; consequences of
employee 4361.8 failure to meet obligations

Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
version: July 2016



Certificated Personnel AR 4115(a)

EVALUATION/SUPERVISION

Note: Education Code 35171 mandates that the Governing Board adopt reasonable regulations related to
evaluating the performance of certificated personnel. The following administrative regulation and
accompanying Board policy should be revised to reflect district practice and any applicable provisions of
collective bargaining agreements.

The following paragraph may be deleted by any district that has not recognized a bargaining unit of certificated
employees.

Evaluation of certificated employees shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures
established in this administrative regulation and applicable collective bargaining agreements. To
the extent that any of those provisions conflict, the procedures in the collective bargaining
agreement shall be implemented.

(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement)

The Superintendent or designee shall print and make available to certificated employees written
regulations related to the evaluation of their performance in their assigned duties.  (Education Code
35171)

(cf. 4112.9 - Employee Notifications)

Frequency of Evaluations

Each probationary certificated employee shall be evaluated at least once each school year.
(Education Code 44664)

(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status)
(cf. 4117.6 - Decision Not to Rehire)

Each certificated employee with permanent status shall be evaluated and assessed at least every
other year. If the employee receives an unsatisfactory evaluation, he/she shall be annually
evaluated until he/she achieves a positive evaluation or is separated from the district.  (Education
Code 44664)

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Alternatively, a permanent employee who has been employed by the district at least 10 years and
who was rated in his/her previous evaluation as meeting or exceeding standards shall be evaluated
at least every five years, if he/she and the evaluator so agree. Either the evaluator or the employee
may withdraw consent for the alternative schedule at any time.  (Education Code 44664)

Evaluation Results



Certificated instructional employees shall receive a written copy of their evaluation no later than
30 days before the last scheduled school day of the school year in which the evaluation

AR 4115(b)

EVALUATION/SUPERVISION (continued)

takes place. Before the last scheduled school day of the school year, the employee and the evaluator
shall meet to discuss the evaluation.  (Education Code 44663)

Noninstructional certificated staff members employed on a 12-month basis shall receive a copy of
their evaluation no later than June 30 of the year in which the evaluation takes place.  Before July
30, the employee and the evaluator shall meet to discuss the evaluation.  (Education Code 44663)

Instructional and noninstructional certificated employees shall have the right to respond in writing
to their evaluation. This response shall become a permanent attachment to the employee's
personnel file.  (Education Code 44663)

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)

Evaluations shall include recommendations, if necessary, as to areas in need of improvement in
the employee's performance. If an employee is not performing satisfactorily according to teaching
standards approved by the Governing Board pursuant to Education Code 44662, the
Superintendent or designee shall so notify the employee in writing and shall describe the
unsatisfactory performance. The Superintendent or designee shall confer with the employee, make
specific recommendations as to areas needing improvement, and endeavor to provide assistance to
the employee in his/her performance.  (Education Code 44664)

The Superintendent or designee may require any certificated employee who receives an
unsatisfactory rating in the area of teaching methods or instruction to participate in a program
designed to improve appropriate areas of performance and to further student achievement and the
district's instructional objectives.  (Education Code 44664)

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance)

Qualifications of Evaluators

Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice.

The Superintendent or designee shall assign the principal or other appropriate supervisory
personnel to evaluate certificated staff.  He/she shall ensure that the evaluator:

1. Possesses a valid administrative credential



2. Is competent in the instructional methodologies used by the teachers being evaluated

3. Is skilled in the supervision of instruction and in techniques and procedures related to the
evaluation of instruction

AR 4115(c)

EVALUATION/SUPERVISION (continued)

4. Is familiar with district curriculum priorities and practices, district standards for student
progress, and district policies and procedures related to personnel supervision, performance
evaluation, and staff development



Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: July 2016



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Personnel AR 4222(a)

TEACHER AIDES/PARAPROFESSIONALS

Qualifications

Note: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 45330, 45344.5, and
45361.5 require paraprofessionals who will be assigned to assist in instruction to demonstrate proficiency in
reading, writing, and mathematics equivalent to or exceeding the proficiency required for high school seniors in
the district or, if the district does not maintain high schools, in the high school district that includes all or a
portionDuties of Paraprofessionalsthe district. Pursuant to Education Code 45330, the district must ensure that
any educational qualifications or proficiency exam established by the district is appropriate to the responsibilities
to be assigned to the paraprofessional. According to the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site,
many districts use the California Basic Educational Skills Test (CBEST) for the purpose of determining proficiency
of paraprofessionals.

The Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) (P.L. 114-95) repealed 20 USC 6319 which contained additional
requirements pertaining to the qualifications of paraprofessionals working in programs supported by federal Title
I funds and required the principal to attest to the school's compliance. However, 20 USC 6311, as amended by P.L.
114-95, requires that the state plan implementing ESSA include requirements addressing qualifications of such
paraprofessionals. According to the CDE, the only requirement applicable to Title I paraprofessionals for the 2016-
17 school year is the requirement to demonstrate proficiency on a local proficiency exam. Thus, requirements for
Title I paraprofessionals are the same as for all other paraprofessionals.

No person shall be initially assigned to assist in instruction as a paraprofessional unless he/she has
demonstrated proficiency in reading, writing, and mathematics skills up to or exceeding that
required for the district'slocal high school seniors pursuant to Education Code 51220(a) and (f).
(Education Code 45330, 45344.5, 45361.5)

A paraprofessional who has passed a proficiency test in another district and was employed in the
same capacity shall be considered to have met the district's proficiency standards, unless the district
determines that the other district's test is not comparable. (Education Code 45344.5, 45361.5)

Duties

Note: The following section applies to duties of all paraprofessionals and may be expanded to reflect district
practice. The repeal of 20 USC 6319 by P.L. 114-95 eliminated additional requirements related to allowable duties
that may be assigned to paraprofessionals in Title I programs, as well as the requirement that the principal annually
attest to the school's compliance.

A paraprofessionalInstructional aides shall perform only such duties as, in the judgment of the
certificated personnel to whom the instructional aideparaprofessional is assigned, may be
performed by a person not licensed as a classroom teacher. These duties shall not include
assignment of grades to students.  (Education Code 4534445330)



2

(cf.
4112.2 - Certification)
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

Instructional aides need not perform their duties only in the physical presence of the teacher, but
the teacher shall retain responsibility for the instruction and supervision of the students in his/her
charge. (Education Code 45344)

Additional Qualifications and Duties of Paraprofessionals in Title I Programs

All paraprofessionals working in a program supported by federal Title I funds shall have received
a high school diploma or its equivalent. (20 USC 6319; 34 CFR 200.58; Education Code 45330)

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

In addition, at least one of the following criteria shall be met immediately by paraprofessionals
hired on or after January 8, 2002, and by the end of the 2005-06 school year by paraprofessionals
hired before January 8, 2002: (20 USC 6319; 34 CFR 200.58; Education Code 45330)

1.  Completion of at least two years of study at an institution of higher education

In accordance with the definition adopted by the State Board of Education, "two years of study"
shall be equal to 48 semester units or equivalent quarter units.

2.   Possession of an associate's degree or higher

3. Knowledge of and ability to assist in instructing reading, writing, and mathematics, as
demonstrated through a local or state assessment

A paraprofessional who was hired on or before January 1, 2003, shall be deemed to have met the
proficiency exam requirements of item #3 above if he/she has previously demonstrated, through a
local assessment, knowledge of and an ability to assist in instructing reading, writing, and
mathematics.  (Education Code 45330)

When a paraprofessional has previously worked in another district, the Superintendent or designee
may determine whether any assessments conducted by the previous district satisfy the proficiency
criteria of item #3 above.

Items #1-3 above shall not apply to any paraprofessional: (20 USC 6319; 34 CFR 200.58;
Education Code 45330)

1.  Who is proficient in English and a language other than English and who provides services
primarily to enhance the participation of children in Title I programs by acting as a translator

2.  Whose duties consist solely of conducting parental involvement activities consistent with 20
USC 6318



3

Paraprofessionals working in a program supported by Title I funds may be assigned to: (20 USC
6319; 34 CFR 200.59)

1.   Provide one-on-one tutoring for eligible students, if the tutoring is scheduled at a time when a
student would not otherwise receive instruction from a teacher

2.   Assist with classroom management, such as organizing instructional and other materials

3.   Provide assistance in a computer laboratory

4.   Conduct parental involvement activities

5.   Provide support in a library or media center

6.   Act as a translator

7.   Provide instructional services to students, provided that the paraprofessional is working under
the direct supervision of a teacher

Title I paraprofessionals may assume limited duties that are assigned to similar personnel in non-
Title I programs, including duties beyond classroom instruction or that do not benefit Title I
students, in the same proportion of total work time as non-Title I paraprofessionals. (20 USC 6319;
34 CFR 200.59)

The principal of each school operating a Title I program shall annually attest in writing as to
whether the school is in compliance with federal requirements regarding qualifications and duties
of paraprofessionals listed above. Copies of attestations shall be maintained at the school and
district office and shall be available to the public upon request. (20 USC 6319)

Parental Notification

Note: The following paragraph applies to districts that receive Title I funds and may be used or revised by other
districts. 20 USC 6312, as amended by P.L. 114-95, contains the following notification requirement formerly in
20 USC 6311.

At the beginning of each school year, a parent/guardianparents/guardians shall be notified that
he/shethey may request information regarding whether his/hertheir child is provided services by
paraprofessionals a paraprofessional and, if so, theirthe paraprofessional's qualifications. (20 USC
63116312)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Regulation SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:   August 9, 2016 Loyalton, California


	1_08-09-2016_SCOE_Agenda.pdf
	2_SCOE Aug2016 ObjSumm.pdf
	3_7-12-16 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	4_SCOE Jul2016 Checks.pdf
	5_16-002 YE Budget Revision for 2015-16.pdf
	6_7-16 Guidesheet.pdf
	7_Policies_08_09_16.pdf

